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P R O C E E D I N G S

MALE:  [Recording Begins] -- representing County Mental Health Agencies.

MR. WEINER:  Steven Weiner of Weiner and Tiffany, representing children and families.

JUDGE CLARK:  Richard Clark.  I’m the Acting Division Presiding Judge for Special Ed.

MS. CHANG:  Cecilia Chang, parent, and also the Executive Director at Goh Foundation representing parents and families.

MS. VANAMAN:  I’m Valerie Vanaman.  I’m an attorney who represents parents and students.

JUDGE LABA:  And then did you say Christine English, who’s a member who is appearing by webcast?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  Great.  Okay.  So in order to get us started, Roberta, has it been decided that you’re going to be running the meeting?

MS. SAVAGE:  As best I can.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  So I’ll let you go ahead and get started and we’ll go from there.

MS. SAVAGE:  All right.  So we’ve gotten through the first part of our agenda.  The next part is to review the recommendations from OAH from the last Advisory, or a response to what had been recommended in the last Advisory Committee meeting.  And I don’t know how many people have had a chance to look at it.  I know Committee members got it in advance.  I don’t know if the public got it in advance so that they could get comments to us.  I think my preference would be because of the time to go -- instead of going through it point by point, we can talk -- we can -- I can mention each topic and get feedback from the Committee and from the public.  

So the first -- the first issue is the calendaring system.  And I am going to point my question -- or point my comment to Susan Bardet because I know she has some written feedback she’s already given OAH but if we can take her highlights and then we’ll open it up to everyone else.

MS. BARDET:  I took notes at our last meeting and what’s good was I sent an email to the Committee members to Judge Laba, Judge Clark and to CDE representatives.  I think that’s okay if it just stays in one place.  

We expressed concern that with the current calendaring system, and actually even as changed subsequent to the October meeting, there were some changes made in the forms in November.  Because we must have firm hearing dates for all cases, even when they are continued, the problem    is -- is that we are setting firm dates for cases that we think are likely to settle.  

That means that if we have a case that must be brought to hearing more quickly we are, the attorneys are, clogging our calendars and OAH is clogging its calendars with firm dates that will not be heard.  That also means that if we have a case that, as I say, must be heard quickly we can’t get it set in a timely manner.  

I know that when I’ve had cases with opposing counsel we’re going months in advance just to get a date even though we don’t think that we will actually be going on the dates that are taking up our calendar.  It is a very inefficient way for attorneys to run their practices and I feel Eliza is not in here representing Districts --

MS SILVERMAN:  But I have.

MS. BARDET:  -- and Lenore is not but it may be a reflection of the pressure as far as with a much larger firm as it is in a small firm.  I’m a solo practitioner and I think that certainly on the parents’ side many more of us are either solos or in very small firms.  So that is a great concern.  

We talked about last time that Massachusetts does have an off calendar provision and OAH did express concern that OSEP may have found problems with the Massachusetts off-the-calendar system.  

The off calendar system in Massachusetts appears to be similar to the one that was in existence when SEHO was handling cases and just so that everyone is clear what that was -- was that certainly initial hearing dates were set so that timeline requirements were met by agreement of the parties the case could go off calendar.  

Now, either party could then request in writing for the case to be put back on calendar so that it -- that option would be available if for some reason a case wasn’t looking like it was settling or the parents had then observed the placement -- whatever.  It was time to hear the case.  So it wasn’t just off calendar forever and there were certain monitoring provisions in place so that status conferences were held or the parties had to respond in writing as to what the status was.  

So what we’re concerned about at least from the parents’ side is that this is putting -- the present system is putting such pressure on our calendars and our ability to represent families effectively it is that it’s providing actually less access to legal representation.  I have heard that some parent attorneys are deciding either to move away from this practice of law or to open up their practice to other areas, in effect lessening representation.  

We still have not heard and perhaps we’re going to hear this today whether OSEP has found any problems with the off calendar system, and that’s something I’ll leave to OAH to address.  I don’t have that information myself.  I’m not aware of any problems in the past under the prior system of SEHO but that was, you know, a number of years ago.  So --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We have a couple of comments up here.  If you guys have any just let me know.  So we’re going to start with Eliza.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes, I just want to clear up on one thing.  I do believe though that there is actually a benefit to parties in some degree of pressure.  What I expressed last time was that the inordinate amount of time one spends on finding mutually agreeable dates and assuming that experts are available for dates that are frequently -- end up being fake dates -- is actually expending tremendous amount of energy and moneys on behalf of both parties that is simply unnecessary, and more so than just leaving things off calendar in the never-never land territory.  My point was to simply go back to what we used to do which was a TSC after mediation.

MS. SILVERMAN:  Can I just reiterate that I agree with Eliza.  Working with opposing counsel I have never had a problem setting a mutually agreeable date ever.  You know, we -- and I think, Eliza, I absolutely concur with you that a trial setting conference to me was the best way to go.  That knowing that date’s coming up and we work together beforehand to ensure that experts are going to be available, that we’ve got mutually agreeable dates and I’ve just never had that turned down by OAH.

MS. SAVAGE:  Janeen, do you guys have any feedback?

MS. STEEL:  Yes.  Actually can I take a quick minute?  We have families here that we need to be able to arrange the room so they can have an interpreter.  So --

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.

MS. STEEL:  -- they need to be in one area so --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. STEEL:  -- and have the interpreter so I don’t know whether it’s better on their side because you can have two rows and hear someone.

Man:  Yes.  It looks like -- 

MS. STEEL:  And so maybe move everybody -- shift everybody this way.

MR. WEINER:  Do we need to bring in more chairs?

Man:  I don’t know.  How many people are here?

MS. SAVAGE:  I just want to add one thing.  If we can all remember to turn our cells on vibrate.  Sorry, Dana.  But even the people in the public.  And then Susan, you want to add?

MS. BARDET:  Yes.  I just want --

MS. SAVAGE:  We’re going to keep going as you guys are re-arranging.  Unless you guys totally --

(Overlapping conversations)

MS. SILVERMAN:  I’m about having at the end of the mediation that the mediation just gets turned into a TSC.  And you set dates at the mediation.  So, you know, we show up on our first mediation.  If it doesn’t settle, we say, 'Okay, pull out your calendars.'  We set seven dates.  What Judge Laba then --

MR. WEINER:  Is that saying -- but just let me back up.

MS. BARDET:  Sure.

MR. WEINER:  Is that saying that once you agree to go to mediation the original hearing dates are being vacated?

MS. SAVAGE:  No, because that’s just a -- we’re just talking about it as part of the process.  You get your notice, here’s your mediation date, here’s your hearing date.  You go to that first day of mediation and instead of settling, we all -- you and the opposing counsel say these are not the -- we’re not going to hearing on that date.  We need eight days.  This is what those eight days will be.  You agree to it.  It’s set.  

The issue that Judge Laba brought up which made -- which started a kind of different discussion was, say you  are -- you have -- say you have requested a continuance.  So you’re not operating off of that first set of dates where you have a hearing date but you’ve requested a continuance so that you could have a mediation and the parties would be doing a TSC.  

Well, what happens if one party cancels that?  Then there’s no hearing date because you have requested a continuance and agreed you would be setting those dates and so how do the dates then get set?  So it was two different -- we were talking about two different scenarios.  

And the issue in the second being if OAH turns to a policy where a case goes off calendar so that the parties can mediate and you, the parties, say we will set dates at that mediation, if one party cancels it how do the dates then get set?  Does that make sense?

MR. WEINER:  I think that --

MS SILVERMAN:  I’m still lost.

MR. WEINER:  I’m confused.  And there seems to be a lot of permutations to it which is the part that’s confusing.

MS. MCARTHUR:  All right.  Could I ask Steve a question?  Steve, is your question why bother with a TSC if you’re agreeing to dates and you’re agreeing to dates and simply after mediation the two attorneys can stipulate to dates and give those dates to the hearing office as opposed to having a TSC?  Is that the point you’re trying to make?

MR. WEINER:  That’s the gist of it.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yeah.  So could I respond, at least from my perspective?  It seems to me that number one, having a TSC does bring some vigor to the process of this part of at least kind of the atmosphere that we wanted to present consistent with IDEA’s requirements.  

But I also think that while attorneys who work together well want to agree to dates there are times when you have so many things on calendar that we simply cannot agree to dates and, you know, we’re supposed to have a hearing in January and we can’t go on those dates but the next time we really have dates open in common is in March.  

And maybe between attorneys that would be an okay thing to do, but really we need to have a judge get involved in terms of how that hearing can happen earlier because in terms of our duties to our clients we really cannot just say yeah, let’s go in March.  And a TSC would provide a forum to do that.

MS. BARDET:  Agreed.

MS. STEEL:  Continued dates?  And like I said I am still a little bit lost in this.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. STEEL:  And so I mean -- I think in the current processes you get a mediation date and you get your hearing date.  I guess I go back to if the first hearing date is just a place holder so OAH doesn’t lose it, I’m a little concerned with that because if most of them -- how many of those are still getting continued?  It seems to be because we put those as our place holders and that’s not effective for our -- you know, it seems like it actually -- I don’t think it’s very cost effective because that means everybody’s having to spend the time for continuances and so I’m still a little -- so I mean I think if we can have -- what is the clean process of that you go to mediation and then set the hearing dates even.  

I mean I understand that you’re worried about losing track but I can’t imagine how anybody would lose track of those days because I don’t think any hearings go for one day.  

JUDGE LABA:  Plenty of hearings -- a lot of hearings go on the initial date and some of them go for one day.  Frequently what we have happen is somebody says I want my hearing on that date but I’m going to need four days and we just tack three days onto the end.  So often people want that initial date.  It’s not just a place holder that doesn’t mean anything.  It is your hearing date and you will go on that date unless you continue the matter.

MS. SAVAGE:  Hold on.  Janeen, what --

MS. STEEL:  No, you go ahead.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. STEEL:  I’ll figure it out as we go.

MS. SMITH:  My first question is, is CDE turning this webcast -- well, my first -- could CDE say hello?  So let me know that you’re --

(Overlapping conversations)

JUDGE LABA:  They’re on the -- we need to webcast from their office.  Yes they did.  They responded.  They’re there.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Who’s the body?

JUDGE LABA:  Shane Burley.

MS. SMITH:  Okay.  My first question is -- and I guess CDE will be responding by email if I ask a question?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.

MS. SMITH:  Then while we’re discussing this issue if I could ask whether CDE, after our October meeting, has contacted OSEP to find out what OSEP’s position in calendaring is.  So if we could have a response then I’m sure you --

JUDGE LABA:  And just in the defense of CDE, because I think the answer’s going to be no, I don’t think that either OAH or CDE understood that that was requested from the Committee.  So I think that if we make it a formal request this time that we’ll have an answer from them.  

I did not view that as a request from the Committee for us to check into a follow up and I believe we reviewed the transcript, Richard, and we didn’t find it in there either.

JUDGE CLARK:  I reviewed the Northern California transcript and I didn’t see a specific request for that.  I don’t recall that.

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.  

(Overlapping conversations)

MR. WEINER:  The Special Education Advisory Committee October 2008 Summary says:  

“The Committee asked that OAH obtain the details of the calendaring system used by Massachusetts for discussion in January.”

JUDGE CLARK:  And that’s in the packet that you don’t have yet so I copied extra copies.

MS. BARDET:  In Northern California we had preliminary discussion about OSEP’s involvement.  Okay.  So now I wanted to go back to this issue about the TSC at mediation.  

One other related topic that we discussed at length in Northern California in October is that more and more I’m finding that at mediation we find that we really need a second day of mediation and sometimes we can’t get an evaluation done within 90 days depending upon, for example, if it’s an independent evaluation.  We may not know during that time what -- you know, how long it will take and when we can continue it to.  

So that is the other reason for a recommendation which is that if at mediation day one we realize that we want another day of mediation to then in effect have a TSC set during the date of the second mediation, and that would still be a firm date with rigor but it would not mean that we have interim hearing dates that we then have to go through the time and expense of motions or stipulations which are very time consuming because it’s very hard to get the attorneys together given everyone’s schedules.  

So that’s another issue that’s really a sub-issue, is can we then have a TSC at either the first day of mediation or if that does not resolve the case and we know we have to meet again then just move the TSC to the second day of mediation.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Yes, Steve?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I don’t know if a motion would be in order but I’m hearing enough discussion about the flexibility that’s needed and whether we do the TSC or have a meet and confer and stipulation on -- I think we’re speculating on an OSEP position.  First of all with the new administration there will be a new OSEP position.  

Woman:  That’s right.

MR. WEINER:  And it’s going to take a long time to get that position.  Do we have from CDE anything in the webcast?  

So it’s taking a while to hear from CDE?  But I think my suggestion would be a motion that this Advisory Committee recommend to OAH that it study the Massachusetts off calendar rule and basically come up with a variation; either adopt it in full or a variation on it which would allow for I think some of the either the TSC stipulation afterwards but the concept for this Committee to make that recommendation.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So we have one -- Jonathan?

MR. READ:  Yeah, before we go there if I could just summarize my understanding of the process because I’m not sure everyone is on the same page before we take --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. READ:  -- a vote.  Basically somebody files for due process and OAH schedules a single day.  The parties can go to a hearing on that date and if the hearing is going to require more days then the hearing will take more days.  And so it will start on that date and it will continue until it’s done.  

MS. VANAMAN:  Is that correct?

MR. READ:  Is that correct so far?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes, that’s correct.

MS. VANAMAN:  So if we -- you give us one day on a Tuesday.  We don’t do anything -- we show up on that day.  It’s clearly a ten day hearing -- you’ll just keep going from that day on until we finish?

JUDGE CLARK:  That’s the expectation.  We’ve worked with the parties typically to figure out the (inaudible) but that’s --

MS. SAVAGE:  Hold on.  

JUDGE LABA:  We’re going to do -- we would like you to go day to day but if you have -- first of all, if you know ahead of time that it’s going to take five days let’s say, tell us so we can add them on right away but if it’s 

going -- if you go the first day and nobody knew it was going to take ten days then we’re going to work with you to pick dates.  


We would prefer you go day to day because we all know these things are hard to do if you spread them out over four months but we’re going to do what we can to accommodate your calendars and get them done.  

We have a lot of hearings that go two days one week, two days the next week and like that.  Not the preference but rather than institute a hard fast -- you must go day to day until finished.  We try and work with all of you on it, just as Richard was indicating.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, keep going down there.

MR. READ:  Okay.  So once we get to that point if then -- I understand if the parties want to continue that initial hearing date they can do so as a matter of course just as long as they agree on some replacement dates within 90 days.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.

MR. READ:  And then so the concern I hear with the TSC is in the circumstances where the parties can agree on a continuance but may not be able to agree on replacement dates, sometimes it would be best to have a judge intervene and order some replacement dates.

MS SILVERMAN:  That’s correct.

MR. READ:  Okay.  And then --

MR. WEINER:  But I thought OAH has a policy that if you can’t agree on the dates you submit your unavailable dates and then they pick the dates that you’re going.  

JUDGE CLARK:  That’s an option on the form.  Yes.

MR. READ:  Okay.  So one of the options on the form is you really need a continuance but you don’t agree to the replacement dates then you can submit on the form the dates that you’re not available and a judge will order some dates perhaps?

JUDGE CLARK:  Right.  Right.

MR. READ:  And so that can occur with -- without a TSC.  And then after that first stipulation for a continuance, then if you want a second continuance or any further continuances, that has to be done by showing good cause.

JUDGE LABA:  Right.  And good cause could be you both are -- it could be a joint request to continue based upon an assessment that’s pending or there’s a lot of different things that could be good cause.  It doesn’t necessarily mean it has to be stipulated or not stipulated.  It can be either.  

MR. WEINER:  I thought it had to be a motion.  And then the other side had to oppose the motion.

JUDGE LABA:  It could be a stipulated motion.

MS. VANAMAN:  But you have been denying those.

JUDGE LABA:  No.  Not as a matter of course, no.

MS SILVERMAN:  Not a stipulated motion.

MR. WEINER:  Well, we’ve been told -- we’ve been told.

JUDGE LABA:  Sometimes stipulated motions have been denied.  

MS. VANAMAN:  Yeah, a lot.

JUDGE LABA:  It depends on the good cause that you’re giving us.

MS. SAVAGE:  So I think the concern is that we have people --

MS. VANAMAN:  Wait, wait, wait.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. VANAMAN:  What does it mean it depends on the good cause?  If we have a stipulated motion what’s this -- all I care about is -- and I’m willing to follow the rules if I understand them.  So a stipulated motion has to say here are all the good cause reasons that we are jointly stipulating -- 

JUDGE LABA:  Right.

MS. VANAMAN:  -- and then you decide if that’s good cause?  Just the fact that we’ve stipulated in and of itself is not good cause?

JUDGE LABA:  Correct.  For the second continuance; not that initial continuance.  So once you continue your initial hearing date to dates you all agree upon, if you want to change those a second time then a simple stipulation is not sufficient.  You have to tell us why.  

MS. SAVAGE:  And I think when we had the discussion up here last time there was a split.  Some of us thought that if the parties just stipulated then that should be good cause.  If the parties agree that second hearing date -- that the second continuance is required --

JUDGE LABA:  And that may be your recommendation.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  And I know that there was a split up here but that was one of the things we discussed because we -- we had heard that there were problems when the second continuance comes around, parties agree to a stipulation and those are getting denied which I still think should be granted.

JUDGE LABA:  I did (inaudible) comments from CDE.

MR. READ:  And so I guess that goes back to my -- I’m sorry.  

JUDGE LABA:  Oh, go ahead.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Jonathan?

MR. READ:  My -- that goes back to my first comment which is the importance of having some kind of off calendar procedure is diminished if we understand what good cause is for that second continuance because if our recommendation is that a stipulation for that second continuance is good cause then, in essence, the attorneys or whoever is representing the parties are working together and you get the same thing.  

MS SILVERMAN:  As long as there’s dates that the parties are recommending, correct, Jonathan?  In other words if you’re going to stipulate to another continuance we still have some kind of an end date in mind.

MR. READ:  Right.  And I just don’t know if the same time line concerns and the pressure from the Feds exists, if this is something that the parties are driving rather than OAH.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah.  I don’t know.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  On my motion I think all of this can be addressed under the rubric of this -- setting this rule.  This is about -- this is about how to implement it is what I’m hearing so is there a second to the motion?  

MS. SAVAGE:  So what we have right now is that Steve is recommending that the Committee ask OAH and CDE to study the Massachusetts off calendar rule and to either adopt it or to find -- modify it to meet the needs of California.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Within three months.

MS. SAVAGE:  Within three months.  So by the next time the Committee is set to meet in April.  Is there anything else?  Yes.

MS. BARDET:  And if I could amend it, how to review specific information about how OSEP has in the past interpreted its guidelines.

MS. SAVAGE:  Did you have a comment from CDE?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.  Shawn Burley commented that CDE was not aware that it had been asked to inquire with OSEP which is what my assumption was because we didn’t -- we weren’t also aware of that -- so OAH and CDE will confer after today’s meeting and get questions answered that we need to get answered.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  (Inaudible) is not one of the amendments.  I think that will hold things up.  Again I don’t think that we should wait for OSEP’s sanctioning of this.  That gets factored into the study that OAH does I think that’s --

MS. BARDET:  That was the holdup last time is that we couldn’t have a discussion about whether this would be a possibility because there was some concern that OSEP had ruled one way or the other about Massachusetts procedures.  So what I’m suggesting is that CDE find out if what if anything OSEP has said about Massachusetts procedures.  Because if they’ve studied the --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I’ll leave that to them.  I’ll leave that to them to figure that out.  I don’t want to make it contingent on an answer because I’m really skeptical about getting an answer.  I’m skeptical about what OSEP got -- I mean OSEP guidance -- its guidance.  It is not law.

MS. SAVAGE:  That’s right.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  So, you know, if they want to take some affirmative steps at some point to change it then they can.  I -- so I still want --

MS. BARDET:  That was the reason that was given to us last time.

MS. SAVAGE:  So Janeen, how do you guys feel about taking a -- taking a show of hands as to whether or not having CDE and OAH do three months of work?

MS. STEEL:  Okay, they’ve got -- I mean this is just my concern, that they’ve had three months.  Because this is what it says:  

“Committee asked them to detail the system in Massachusetts for discussions.”  

So basically what this was interpreted is to hand us the paper for us to -- for us to discuss it?  I mean I guess what we have to now explain that we have had hopes that they would review it to help us with this discussion.  Is that the difference?  I mean that -- what does it have to be different to make sure that this motion -- that we get the discussion?  Does that make sense?  I could literally is invite --

MS. SAVAGE:  I think that’s the same question.

MS. STEEL:  So I mean my question is that so did OAH and did CDE review the Massachusetts and have an opinion on it before we make a motion that waits three more months having them review it again.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

JUDGE LABA:  OAH --

(Overlapping voices)

MR. WEINER:  Can we -- can we amend the motion so that we vote on that we want them to adopt an off calendar procedure consistent with Massachusetts?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I’ll accept that.

MS. SAVAGE:  No, wait.  Wait, wait, wait.  What we can do -- what we did up here last time which good, bad or indifferent -- so we would take whether it’s one, seven or twenty-seven different recommendations and then we’d do a show of hands to see is there unanimous support, is there not unanimous support and we can get -- and OAH can then take it from there.  

So what I hear is we have one that says let’s look at Massachusetts as Steve said and I’m not going to rephrase it.  And Steve WEINER: is now asking to --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I will withdraw mine and adopt Steve Weiner's motion.

MS. SAVAGE:  So now we have a response to adopt the -- is it Steve down in Southern California?  Are you asking to adopt the off calendar procedure from Massachusetts?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  And on calendar.  That’s what I heard.

MR. WEINER:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And the specific Massachusetts one?

MR. WEINER:  We’d like you to consider that as a model, yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And Steve --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I think that’s consistent with --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So that is -- so that’s one that we will be looking at at the end of this discussion.  Is there another one?

MR. REZOWALLI:  Just a question on that one.  Are we saying to OAH what we’d like to see is off calendar procedure.  Can you please come up with one?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  That’s part of it, yes.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  That is it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.

(Overlapping voices)

MR. CORBIN:  It’s the original where we’re not recommending an off calendar --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. CORBIN:  Again I’m not sure if Districts are particularly interested in off calendar.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So now we have two.  So we 

have -- the Steve’s are saying we want an off calendar system.  We’d like the Massachusetts form.  Carl Corbin is saying that he and possibly other districts don’t want an off calendar system but they want the Massachusetts system explored.  Is that correct?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Roberta gets the motion?

(Overlapping conversations)

MR. CORBIN:  (Inaudible).  Otherwise we’re voting against the motion we don’t get anyway.  Do you understand?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Was there something down in Southern California?

MS. STEEL:  Another motion I think.  Maybe.  Right?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

(Overlapping conversations)

MS. STEEL:  Are we still at the motion as to adopt an off calendar similar to Massachusetts?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  We’re just kind of going down the list of what are the different options and then we’ll go through and say what’s everyone’s opinion on each.  So I’ll just -- yeah, we’re trying to figure out which -- how many different possibilities Committee members want to talk -- have as a final areas of recommendation and if we have two or three or four then each Committee member can say this is the one that I agree with.  So the first one is the Steves’ which is adopt an off calendar and the model is Massachusetts.  

MS. MCARTHUR:  And then Carl and I just clarified.  We’re talking about a TSC approach which involves some limited off calendar period.  Is that correct, Carl?

MR. CORBIN:  Yes.  

MS. MCARTHUR:  Okay.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  So that’s consistent with the motion in question.

MS. MCARTHUR:  What?  Well, it’s a farther -- well, if you’re looking at Massachusetts as the way it may not completely be consistent with what we’re talking about so we just wanted to clarify.

MS. SAVAGE:  Am I -- are we confusing everyone down there, Janeen?

MR. READ:  Yes.

MS. STEEL:  Yes.  

MR. CORBIN:  I think, Roberta --

MS. STEEL:  Is it -- we don’t want to combine --

MR. CORBIN:  I feel like you should just restate the motion and either vote or table it or something.

MS. STEEL:  There you go.  Yes.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Question to clarify.  As Carl said do we vote on both of them and say yes to both or --

MS. SAVAGE:  I think we should be --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Carl is expressing concern that --

MR. CORBIN:  I think it would be most helpful to give information saying OAH that we can again -- we can have a majority -- but this is information.  Again we’re advisory.  We’re sharing information with OAH.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SILVERMAN:  -- to have a clearer picture of what we’re -- what the options are.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Logically you can vote on both.

MS. SAVAGE:  All right.  So the question is --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Logically both would work.

MS SILVERMAN:  Eliza, can I just clarify one thing.  When we’re talking about this what I would like to see is if we’re going to have some kind of a longer continuance or trial setting conference, it would be a process where there’s always a date on calendar rather than just have it have it evaporate into an off calendar; to have a prolonged continuance but always have some type of a date.  That that would be --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Except that in the -- we are going to have to vote very soon --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. MCARTHUR:  -- we understand.  But let me -- but let me just say one thing.  Certainly in -- what I was talking about last time, when we met in October, and I think what we did for a while -- what OAH did for a while was that you could have a firm first date.  You could have a mediation moved post that firm first date and instead of working on dates that may or may not matter, the TSC gets set at the end of mediation or the day after or whatever.  So pending mediation you could literally not have a date.

MS. SAVAGE:  Correct.

MS. MCARTHUR:  But it’s a short, definitive period.

MS. SAVAGE:  Correct. Okay.  Got it.  All right.  So we’re going to go -- we’re going to go for a vote unless there’s something you want to say, Jonathan?

MR. READ:  No.  I’m just going to recommend that we have one motion and then vote on that.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. READ:  And the second motion and vote on that rather than try to clump together alternatives.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes.

MR. READ:  And also say that we’d be conscious of the fact of trying to include all the details in our recommendation because it’s been an hour so far and we’re never going to get through an agenda.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All right.  So the first -- and the Steves jump in if I get it incorrect.  The first motion is that the Advisory Committee recommend OAH adopt an off calendar system that the model is the Massachusetts off calendar that was presented to us today.  Is that correct?

MR. WEINER:  That is correct.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I say that’s fine.  I think in that process there’s a word to show cause --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  -- a condition that’s in there if I may look at TSCs --

MS. SAVAGE:  Got it.  So as a committee you can vote.  We’ll just take a showing of hands and if someone down in Southern California can vote and give us those numbers.  Who is in favor of that motion with show of hands?

MS. MCARTHUR:  So long as what Steve just said is is included which is other options such as TSC will be looked at as part of that analysis.

MR. WEINER:  That’s a separate motion.

MS. SAVAGE:  That’s a separate --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Oh.  I thought we were doing one?

MS. SAVAGE:  No.  We’ll do --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Okay.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So let’s get a show of hands.  Okay.  Do we have a number from Southern California?

MS. STEEL:  Five.

MS. SAVAGE:  Five in favor?  Okay.  Everyone who’s opposed?  

Female:  Four.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Southern California, do you have a --

MS. STEEL:  Three.

MS. SAVAGE:  Three?  And people who don’t have an opinion?  None.  Okay.  So the --

MS. STEEL:  So how many do you have over there?

MS. SAVAGE:  We had five to four up here, five to three down in Southern California.  So we had five in favor and four opposed.  So at this point the Committee has ten in favor of the motion and seven opposed.

MS. BARDET:  Will Christine be voting down there because she’s on the internet? 

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  Good point.  Is she on -- that’s Christina on the web?

MS. SAVAGE:  We should make a note.  

MS. BARDET:  -- opposed by Steven.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  So they have another one from you guys with Christine.

MS. STEEL:  We have six to four.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  Six for you guys.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Are we separating north and south?

MS. SAVAGE:  No.  We’re just trying to get --

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Although there may be a reason why Southern California votes differently and there might something come up.  So the second motion is -- Eliza -- the request that OAH develop a system where TSC’s are held at the end of mediation which might include some limited off calendaring if the mediation is held --

JUDGE LABA:  Essentially what we were doing 

before --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Before you adopted the current system.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  That’s what I thought.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  Is that clear to everyone in Southern California?  Because --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Not yet.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MR. WEINER:  Is there a motion?

MS. SAVAGE:  There’s the second motion which is that OAH go back to the system before October which permitted parties to put a case sort of off calendar if they had a mediation after their hearing date as long as the mediation was on the calendar and then there would be a TSC at the end of that mediation.

JUDGE LABA:  So in other words, you continued your initial hearing date to a trial setting conference that would occur at the end of your mediation.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Exactly.

MS. STEEL:  We have discussion.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes?

MS. VANAMAN:  I just calculated it.  By my guess I probably spent seventeen thousand minutes discussing calendaring in Special Education cases over the last 35 years and they all come back to the same place.  They all come back to the same place.  I mean it’s just whatever happens is going to happen, it’s just a matter of having some basic rules that everybody understands there’s always exceptions to.  

Things happen in people’s lives.  There are clients’ lives, attorneys’ lives, witnesses’ lives and OAH’s life for that matter if you suddenly start being furloughed two days a month or something.  Stuff happens.  

This whole thing about the TSC’s and people don’t go to mediation, whatever, it seems to me it’s pretty easy to just say here is our system with the recognition that there are some good cause exceptions and that those good cause exceptions have to be realistic and one of them has to be that if the parties agree you really can’t treat us like we’re children.  

I mean, if you’ve got two experienced attorneys who stipulate and say it is reasonable to continue this hearing and we’re giving you firm dates, you ought to give that some credence that we know what we’re doing.  These are not -- these are not people on either side of the fence who are afraid to state their minds and if they want to get a hearing going they’re not going to stipulate to it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Valerie, you bring up -- you bring up a good point and I’m wondering if we want to hold off some of the good cause to the next topic because I think you’re right.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah, go ahead.  Go ahead and finish, Valerie.

MS. VANAMAN:  No, that’s okay.  It’s alright.  I was going to tie it all together but this (inaudible) makes that argument.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Okay so we’re just going to vote on the second motion and then we’re going to go to good cause.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I have a question.  I hear what you’re saying, Valerie, but are you then arguing against this motion or in support?

(Overlapping voices)

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Valerie?

MS. VANAMAN:  Sorry.  I was obviously told to be cut off.  It’s fine.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I hear what you’re saying.  I’m trying to figure out if you’re urging -- which way is your question -- your comment go?

MS. VANAMAN:  On this particular matter all I was trying to say was so when it all comes back around to is whatever system you use when you have represented parties and it obviously has to work for unrepresented parties as well, granted the TSC takes place whether it’s necessary to take place at the end of mediation or whether it needs to be a formal thing, is really going to depend on whether or not the parties have been able to stipulate.  

If in their initial filing of those papers they set out dates and those are there, then this whole discussion gets avoided.  This TSC question only comes up when in fact you have a situation where there’s been difficulty over agreeing to hearing dates.   

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Okay.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.

MS. VANAMAN:  And it’s just got to accommodate them.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Okay.  I agree.  Questions?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So then the questions -- okay so let’s -- okay so we’re going to vote on the second and before we get there there was a question from the web about what a TSC is -- it’s a trial setting conference which is where you would schedule the hearing dates --

MS. BARDET:  By telephone.

MS. SAVAGE:   -- by telephone.  It’s not something you have to do in person.  Okay so the second motion is that OAH go back to the system that they used prior to October and so everyone in favor of that?

MS. BARDET:  May I ask a question to clarify?  The old system prior to October did not include a way to deal with cases in which we wanted it to move the hearing date but keep the original mediation date.  In other words, to ask for a TSC I don’t believe.  If we wanted to meet at mediation whether we could have a TSC at mediation even if -- I don’t think --

JUDGE LABA:  Let me just clarify one thing.  Because every time you go to mediation you have the ability to have a TSC with the mediator.  Whether one’s on calendar or not, you have the ability to sit with that mediator at the end of your mediation if it’s not successful and say we have these dates on calendar but we really want to change them.  So whether you have a TSC technically on calendar or not, that ability exists for you regardless of any other factors.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so we’re going to -- I’m going to kind of move this through.  

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Make a list.  Just keep a list.  Having OAH go back to the system prior to October 2008, all those in favor show of hands?  We have four up here.  Southern California?

MS. STEEL:  We have one.

MS. SAVAGE:  One?  All those opposed?  

Female:  One, two, three, four, five. 

MS. SAVAGE:  Southern California?

MS. STEEL:  Two.

MS. SAVAGE:  People who have no opinion?

MS. VANAMAN:  Since I don’t understand what the system was before October first, I’m not able to say.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So how many are no?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  The abstains go with the majority.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So now, Valerie, we’re going to get to your topic of good cause.  And what Judge Laba --

MS. STEEL:  What’s the total?

MS. SAVAGE:  So what we have is, in north -- there are five in favor of the system of the second motion --

MS. MCARTHUR:  This is not a no, this is a yes for the second motion.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  So there were five in favor of the second motion and there were seven against the second motion and then there were -- 

MS. MCARTHUR:  Abstaining in Southern California.

JUDGE LABA:  And I have Christine’s vote.  Hold on.

MS. SAVAGE:  And the abstaining -- I think I lost your number.

MS. STEEL:  We have four.

JUDGE LABA:  Christine is opposed to the second motion.  Christine English, add to the opposed.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so just so I -- so we have it clear, between the two there were five people who agreed with the second motion, there were seven who opposed it?  Are there eight?

MS. BARDET:  I think there was six.

MS. STEEL:  We have one and how many do you have in favor?

MS. BARDET:  Five.

MS. SAVAGE:  We have four in favor.  

MS. STEEL:  Four in favor.  So that means five.

MS. SAVAGE:  So for the opposition to that motion we had five, you guys had two in person and Christine voted by web as a no so that made eight, and then there were four who abstained. 

MR. ROSENBAUM:  So it failed?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes. 

MR. READ:  I think it’s advisory.  It’s giving --

(Overlapping conversations)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so the next issue is the good cause standard.  

JUDGE LABA:  I would just like to say that it was brought to our attention, I can’t remember who did it maybe it was Susan or someone, that the standard for good cause that we had intended to have published months ago, I thought it was published so thank you whoever brought it to our attention -- it is published this morning.  I would be happy to show it to you quickly.  

MS. VANAMAN:  Where was it published this morning?

JUDGE LABA:  I think it’s on the web page.

JUDGE CLARK:  It’s added to our website.

MS. VANAMAN:  Do you have something to print out that we can see it?  It’s really -- I can’t see the screen from here.  

JUDGE LABA:  I don’t have anything to print out but we have someone in the office there print it out for you guys.  It’s under the Laws tab.

JUDGE CLARK:  I’ll get us a copy of it.

JUDGE LABA:  So here down at the bottom is the continuance procedure that outlines some recommendations and procedures.  I really apologize.  We had sent it months ago to be published but apparently there was some kind of miscommunication so thank you for bringing that to our attention.  It is up now.

MS. BROCK:  Should we go to the next one while this one is being printed?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah.  How about we move -- yes.

MS. STEEL:  We’d like to make a motion.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  

(Overlapping conversations)  

MS. SAVAGE:  Go ahead, Jonathan, or whoever.

MR. READ:  I’ll make the motion and the motion is that the stipulation in and of itself be considered good cause for a continuance.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. WEINER:  Second.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so we’ve got -- let’s just -- is everyone around the table?  Let’s just take a vote on that.  Who agrees that if the parties stipulate to a continuance that should be good cause without anything else?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Can we take a moment to read this thing?

MS. SAVAGE:  No, I don’t think it matters if we see it or not.  All in favor?

MS. BARDET:  We’re voting?

MS. SAVAGE:  So good cause is merely the parties stipulated to a continuance.

MS. STEEL:  Seven support.

MS. SAVAGE:  Seven support?  We have eight in support.  All those opposed?  Do you have anyone in opposition to the motion down there?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We have a one.  

MS. BARDET:  We need Christine.

MS. SAVAGE:  And then we’ll wait for Christine’s vote.  Okay.  Is there anything -- what else do we want to talk about in the context of good cause other than now we’ve got --

MS. STEEL:  I just have a comment on the -- in the parent manual we have to be -- I think one of the issues that came up was that it may be an assessment but it’s not included in here.  It may be a good example to put in.  I know we’re not in it but it’s regarding good cause.  

On Page 43 and it actually -- good cause does not include that a complaint is filed with CDE and I think we might want to table that in maybe another discussion because if records are pending because parents aren’t getting records then it may actually be good cause to get records if it -- if they filed a compliance complaint.  

So that may be another discussion, but I just wanted to make sure that what’s in the parent manual is consistent with whatever has just been posted but I haven’t read it all.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. BROCK:  (Inaudible)

MS. STEEL:  No, I’m not saying that it would be good cause but I have a feeling that if parents are filing -- because this is coming -- I would never have put this as an example.  Obviously this has been a request probably that OAH has received, right, because I don’t know if any of the attorneys -- I’ve wouldn’t make a request to continue because I’m waiting for something from the CDE but a parent might because they may believe that they’re waiting for records that are going to be ordered by CDE for example, right, and because they can’t get the records from the District they filed for due process and they’re waiting for CDE to order to get the records.  

So I think this may -- I don’t know what was underlying this in here.  It just feels like there may be another issue going on.

MS. JOHNSON:  And if you have that out of compliance complaint for due process and you’re waiting for the records and then you can’t obtain the records and you have CDE steps in and then they issue a corrective action that doesn’t suit the need, then where is the parent to proceed in a case?  

MS. STEEL:  So it may not be good cause but I think that there -- I notice that there is another explanation in here about CDE orders and how it interplays and that may be just some recommendation for later on in the discussion for the parent manual.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And just to cut -- so everyone’s clear.  Christine English voted in favor of the stipulation as good cause.  So I think down in Southern California you had unanimous support.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Could I ask Judge Laba for a clarification?

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Because it seems to me that that brings up a good point.  I would like to see citizen complaint as a basis of good cause but certainly a complaint about records, i.e. a parent not being able to go to hearing because the District isn’t providing records, that seems to me to be it’s a factor of good cause and I’m wondering whether it’s a comment -- that there’s a comment that you could make on that.

JUDGE LABA:  The only comment I can make now because it’s something we’ll have to discuss and we’re going to have to discuss it with the CDE because I don’t know what the procedure is for that.  I have to verify with CDE that that’s not going to -- you know how the intersection -- but I don’t want to say it is good cause and then if CDE puts their complaint on hold; do you understand what I’m saying?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Right.  But let me say that the issue of not getting records is separate from the issue of intersection.  In other words --

JUDGE LABA:  I’m not in a position to comment today yes or no it is good cause.  It’s something we’ll have to discuss as an agency.

MS. MCARTHUR:  That’s fine but I want to purposely separate it.  I don’t believe that a CDE compliance 

complaint -- you know, certainly it’s not due process, it’s not testimony under penalty of perjury, it’s not the same deal so we look to due process as giving us perhaps the way to depth of analysis and sworn testimony and so on that hopefully leads to a better result.  

But when a parent does not have records the fact that a parent has made a CDE complaint perhaps is neither here not there.  Perhaps all that’s needed is a declaration saying ‘I ain’t got no records.’  You know, is that good cause?

JUDGE LABA:  And I think that’s -- I’m sorry -- that’s a good recommendation and please put that in there that we should consider that.

MS. STEEL:  So maybe that would be one of the recommendations that -- you don’t have parents that are not represented, don’t have records and they’re filing for due process and they’re hoping to get those records through filing because sometimes that will happen.  That I think should be good cause for those parents.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes.  And I would recommend it.

MS. STEEL:  Absolutely.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right so then --

MS. BROCK:  But it’s not only records.  Many parents use the compliance complaint process because it doesn’t involve a hearing and the expense and everything else and if the other party, the District, decides that they want to file in order to stop the compliance complaint, it kind of defeats the whole process.  

And I think that once the compliance complaint is filed that should -- especially if it’s filed from the parent and it’s the side that does -- that that is satisfying their need for getting relief and that should be held until a result is made because as you know it stops when a hearing is filed.

MR. CORBIN:  On that point it’s not because (inaudible) requires them to stop --

MS. BROCK:  I understand that but I think, you know, Bob, a parent -- if a parent is filing a compliance complaint they’re filing it because they are looking to the state to get relief for their child without having to go spend, you know, fifty, sixty thousand dollars on a hearing which is about the average price of a hearing in our district.  In fact, it’s been more.  

So for no cost to the parent they can file a compliance complaint and get the -- you know, hopefully what they want.  And I truly believe that that should stop any hearing filing that has to do with any parts of the compliance complaint.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Could I just make a comment?

MS. SAVAGE:  Let’s get done here so, yeah.

MS. STEEL:  I don’t want to get us off.  My comment was just that the manual should be very clear and that may be one of the issues but I don’t want to sit in on a compliance complaint because that’s not -- I mean --

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  

MS. STEEL:  I’d like us to keep moving forward on that.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  I have one comment from the public that probably is something we should add to the list to make sure it’s in the parent manual as well.  

To clarify that good cause does not necessarily mean -- it is not necessarily the unavailability of the parties to the school FAPE.  Clarifying that OAH does hold hearings 52 weeks a year, we don’t go dark for Christmas break or spring break or anything so that in and of itself is not necessarily good cause.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Well, and I think just to kind of hit us on the good cause, I think the concerns that were brought up at the last meeting were who knows what good cause -- I mean it’s hard to understand what the definition is and not having the information until this morning I think really prohibits us from having a further discussion about it which is what I know up in Northern California we had hoped to be able to have and I’m only going to assume that Southern California was hoping that -- that they were hoping to have the same discussion.  

I’m not comfortable saying oh, it’s up on the website, let’s read it now and have a discussion about it.  I think the issues still exist.  We don’t know what good cause is and any time a party files a request for a continuance separately or jointly we’re kind of playing Russian roulette.  Is this one going to get granted?  Is it not?  

So I don’t know if I’m overstepping but it -- I don’t know if we can have much of a discussion today except to reiterate our frustration that -- at least from my point of view, I don’t know what good cause is and I’d like to know.  

MS. SMITH:  You know what maybe we could do is table this for later on today.  Hopefully we can get back to it during the break have an opportunity to carefully read through it.  So in Southern we could do that.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so in Southern California, did I express the concern of the Committee or is that just my personal concern?

MS. STEEL:  Yeah, I’m -- unless somebody has any comment.  As long as we just got it so I --

MS SILVERMAN:  So can we table it -- take a break a little bit later maybe give us a chance to look it over and maybe have this discussion towards the end of our meeting.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so Southern California, what the recommendation is is if we move through the rest and come back at the end or say 1:30 we come back to good cause?  That we could take a fifteen-minute break or something and give some people time at some point before 1:30 to review what has just been presented?

MS. STEEL:  I thought we were going straight through?  Maybe take a five-minute break, right?  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so we --

MS. STEEL:  And we still have -- we need public comment as well.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  So let’s say 1:15 we come back to the good cause and we’ll take five minutes at 1:00 or something or five after one?

MR. CORBIN:  Does everyone feel comfortable that they’ll be able to read that in five minutes?  

MS SILVERMAN:  We’re going to need more than a five minute break.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Could we do it (overlapping voices) none of us worry about food.  There’s something about getting this right.

MS. SAVAGE:  How do you guys feel about moving this issue since we just got the information?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  If we find when we -- at 1:30 or 1:15 that we need more time we can table it again.  

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yeah.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  So I think it’s worth at least -- since we’re here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Don’t talk to me talk to Southern --

We’re all talking up here.  We need to get --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I’m just saying that if we move to table it -- I like the idea of trying to discuss it today.  We don’t meet that frequently.  We already know that things move slowly so let’s try to deal with it today and if we still need more time then we’ll table it until the next meeting.

MS. SAVAGE:  Good.  I agree.  Southern California?

MR. WEINER:  We agree.

MS. STEEL:  We agree.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All right.  Court reporters.  Is there any comment on the use of court reporters as OAH has responded?

MS. BROCK:  I have a comment.  They are permitted as far as I’m aware.  It’s just that the party (inaudible) would have to (inaudible) and if (inaudible) --

MS. SAVAGE:  So you’re saying -- you’re saying --

MS. BROCK:  In the parent manual.  Right.  In the parent manual it restates this.

JUDGE LABA:  Court reporters are permitted if you pay for them.  OAH does not provide for them.

MS. BROCK:  And if the parties agree is that correct?  All parties in the proceeding would have to agree or just one party?  Okay.  I think we need to get that clarified.

MS. STEEL:  Valerie has a comment.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  Yes.

MS. VANAMAN:  If a school district, for example, is committed to investing a great deal of money and they agree to have a court reporter and they’re getting dailies, will the hearing officer have the authority to order them to give a copy of the dailies to the parent without charge to the parent?

MS. SAVAGE:  You know, I think that’s truly a hypothetical situation.  I can’t imagine one school district in California these days that would be able to afford that.  

MS. VANAMAN:  I can assure you that it’s not hypothetical.  So the issue is would that (inaudible) practice before the hearing officer?

MS. SAVAGE:  That’s a good question.

JUDGE LABA:  The question I will submit to OAH.   I’ll have to check into it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so we’ll need to -- so we will have OAH need to look into whether or not one party can be ordered to, or just the District can be ordered to --

MS. BROCK:  Or both.

MR. READ:  Or both.

MS. BROCK:  Why not both parties?

MS. VANAMAN:  If it’s the District who has brought the court reporter in and the hearing office allows -- the Division of Special Education Hearings allows them to do so, is there any policy currently existing as to whether or not if they do so that they would be required to provide a copy of the daily transcripts if that’s what they’re getting to the parents?

JUDGE CLARK:  Insofar as the parent brought in the court reporter --

MS. VANAMAN:  Same rule.  Same question.

MS SILVERMAN:  If one party gets a court reporter, it’s OAH -- do they have the authority to order dailies to be shared with the other side?  

MS. SAVAGE:  And I think that’s not a motion -- that’s just a request.  A question that we are wanting answered by our next meeting or sooner.  Okay, is there any other discussion about the court -- Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Yeah, I just want to know if OAH was supposed to be determining whether school districts and parents can provide a digital copy at the time of the hearings.  So do we know what that determination was?

JUDGE LABA:  You’re talking about --

MS. STEEL:  Whether it’s a thumb drive or a CD drive?

JUDGE LABA:  Essentially your own daily in other words.

MS. STEEL:  Yeah.

JUDGE LABA:  We just heard back from the Department of Education this morning.  This is one of the questions we had posed to them as to -- because parents are entitled to one free copy of the record and we didn’t want to mess with that by giving them dailies and have that take up the one free copy and then create a problem.  So we had posed that question to CDE.  They are still researching that question and so I don’t have an answer today.  Richard, when is the next monitoring meeting?

JUDGE CLARK:  I don’t have the dates here but I believe it’s the second Tuesday in February.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  So they’ll -- OAH will meet with CDE again in February and be able to hopefully get an answer to that but their legal department is investigating whether or not we can provide that.

MS. BARDET:  That’s to get the digital recording.

JUDGE LABA:  That’s to get a thumb drive every day of the recording.  And once we find out whether we can provide that the next question is can our equipment do that?  

MS. SMITH:  So OAH and CDE are considering that a daily audio digital recording would take place when you appeal your pre-temp or at any time --

MS. BROCK:  No, at any time during the hearing to get a daily.  In other words --

MS. SMITH:  Right.  But that would replace the free copy that you get--

JUDGE LABA:  That’s the question.  We want to make sure before -- we want to make sure we’re not interfering with any rights so they’re investigating whether or not that would create a problem with that right to get a free copy at the end of the hearing.  So we’re investigating.

MS. BROCK:  You need a transcript.

JUDGE LABA:  Right.  And I don’t -- that’s the whole question.  Because the law provides that parents get one free copy either electronical or written.  You only get one modem of one means of communication.  What I don’t want to have happen is that somebody argues that well, you got a daily every single day of the recording, a digital, so you’ve already gotten a free copy and then you have to pay for the written copy.

MS. BROCK:  So can you pay for the daily and still get the written?

JUDGE LABA:  That’s a really good question. 

MS. SAVAGE:  Jonathan?  

JUDGE LABA:  We need to figure that out.

MR. READ:  Yeah.  That would just extend to both parties.  I mean if the answer is yes and that’s their free copy then obviously school districts would want a copy at that time, too.  And would they be able to get it with cash?

MS. BARDET:  Okay, here’s a question for you.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so here’s a question from the web:

“Why would you be discussing an issue you have no information on?”

  Very good question.  It takes someone from outside to --

MR. READ:  Because we’re lawyers and that’s what we do for a living.

MS. SAVAGE:  

“Should this information have been provided before the meeting?”

  So I will say I thought the information was supposed to be provided before the meeting and I think that’s why we’re trying to delay it and possibly table this to the next meeting about the good cause.  But yes.  In fact I’m going to leave this in front of me.  So any time there’s no information I’m going to refer to it.  Okay, so the issue OAH is also going to look into the issue of the dailies and whether that replaces the cost -- the free copy.  

MS. SMITH:  Right.  And also the second part of that that Sherianne said was if they can’t -- if they can do a daily then can their equipment support that request.

JUDGE LABA:  And we can look at those simultaneously.

MS. SAVAGE:  And -- okay.

MR. READ:  I just wanted to make sure that extended to both parties so if the parent is entitled to a daily what’s the process for the District for obtaining a daily as well.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So then, I think the other part of this was having OAH bring to the table information about the appeals where there is a missing transcript.  And so I’m wondering what information we have today about that.

JUDGE LABA:  Richard, do you have that information with you?

JUDGE CLARK:  I’m sorry, Sheri.  No, I was handing something out.  I missed the question.

JUDGE LABA:  On the research that we conducted about the missing transcripts -- do you have that with you?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yeah, let me find it.  I have it in my packet information.

JUDGE LABA:  And thank you to everyone who responded.  It was very helpful to take a look back and we did look back at every one of the cases that someone indicated there was some kind of missing transcript or something and we (inaudible) broke it down into three categories.  

One are problems that occurred prior to what we call our FTR reporting system which is the current reporting system we have.  

The second were transcription problems where the problem wasn’t with our recording equipment but with the transcriptionist who was less than diligent and would say, you know, unable -- inaudible multiple times.  So it was a transcription agency problem.  

And the third kind were truly recording difficulties whether they be a mistake the judge made, not pushing the right button or a problem with the equipment itself whether it be a personnel pilot error or whether it was a hard copy -- I mean a hard equipment error.  So we looked at each one of those and broke them into three different categories.  Find everything?

JUDGE CLARK:  I do.  So what we found were there were 13 allegations of mis-recordings.  Is this the question?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.

JUDGE CLARK:  Okay.  Two problems were with the transcription and not the recording.  One was an invalid case number we weren’t able to determine.  One was settled before the hearing began so there was no recording.  Eight were pre-FTR hearings.  And one is the recent case that we’re aware of about -- and we -- one ALJ failed to properly record one of the witnesses.  So they were basically all operator error.  There weren’t any machine errors that we found.

JUDGE LABA:  So that’s not to say that those eight that were pre-FTR -- we’re not saying that there weren’t problems with those but they were under our old recording system which was a tape recorder.  Some tapes were lost in one instance, some people didn’t push the button right in one instance but those were very old recordings and so in other words our current recording systems seem to be working very well.  We will address the transcript process with the transcription agency.  So we’re glad that you brought those to our attention.

JUDGE CLARK:  Sheri, just so everybody knows that FTR stands for For the Record.  It’s the digital recording equipment system that OAH uses to record our hearings.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Is there any further input from the Committee or the public on the topic of court reporters?

MS. MCARTHUR:  I’m sorry, just one second.  Judge, we need a repetition here for -- oh, she’s got it.  Okay.  Good.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  If there’s no comment -- and just so the public -- I apologize for doing this almost two hours into it but if there’s any comment from the public alert me if you’re up here in Northern California.  Try Janeen Steel or Judge Clark if you’re in Southern California so we can get your feedback in as well.  

The next topic is there was a discussion about having the hearing held at a neutral location.  And I think what had been discussed was that just having it at the District Office was kind of standard.  It was the way it seemed to work.  It might not be considered neutral for some parents but was kind of the best.  Do we have any more discussion on it?  

MS. BROCK:  I’d like to comment about the parents also having a room to go in and talk with the witnesses because what we found is that not only does the District get, you know, 15, 20 hours to prep witnesses (inaudible) but they are prepping witnesses in between witnesses in order to, you know, coordinate stories and parents don’t have any time at all to even -- I mean besides the small time they do prep their witnesses they don’t have any place but the hallways to talk to the witnesses about anything that’s come up that they need to discuss.  So -- 

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. BROCK:  I mean if the District (inaudible), you know, with a nice room for witnesses the parent could also have a room.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Anything else on the location?  All right.  The next is recording the PHC’s and OAH will now be doing it.  Oh, I’m sorry.  PHC’s are Pre-Hearing Conferences that are typically done by phone.  Typically they’re done with either both attorneys, if both parties are represented or it might be mom or dad who’s kind of being the one directing the hearing if it’s an unrepresented party before a Director of Special Education.  

The issue that came up was there was a question up in Northern California, I’m not sure up in Southern, about one party recording it and it looks like it’s going to be at the request of the party to be able to do that.  Any discussion on that?

MS. JOHNSON:  Just that (inaudible) for the parent handbook that parents have the right.

MS. SAVAGE:  Good.  Keep your list going, Dana.  The next is access to witnesses.  I think this was intended more to help unrepresented parents.  Is there any discussion about access to witnesses?  Dana?

MS. JOHNSON:  (Inaudible) encountered so it’s just access to witnesses to my own witnesses that were -- you can’t get to them.  They are behind locked doors and it’s an outstanding virtual impossibility whether you even hired somebody to -- you know, to issue the subpoena without trying to do it on your own.  If you cannot get a hold of their schedule, you’re not privy to their private information and what their addresses are and to employees it's like a virtual impossibility.  It’s a Catch 22.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  Right.  And we talked --

MS. JOHNSON:  -- (inaudible) unrepresented.

MS. SAVAGE:  I’m not going to -- I’m sorry to cut you off but I apologize to everyone for cutting you off.  We had a lot of this discussion last time and what I’m trying to focus on is on our comments to OAH’s responses.  So -- but thank you.  I don’t want to cut you off if you’ve got something to add.

The etiquette decorum policy participants; I know there was some discussion up here about looking at the Northern District rules and we just got it today so again I’m going to look at the great question from the web, why would we be discussing an issue we have no new information on?  But does anyone want to take some time to talk about the etiquette decorum policy?  

JUDGE LABA:  Someone asked us to get the Northern District and the Superior Court --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  This is for pro per litigants.

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Is that the title?

MS. BROCK:  That was on the web.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So I’m going to go back a couple steps.  We got a comment from the web about the location of the hearing and someone just wants to make clear that if one party requests that the hearing be held elsewhere it should be granted.  Often there is a reason behind the request although it may not be well-articulated.

JUDGE LABA:  I’ll tell you what our procedure is.  If a parent requests that the hearing be moved to another location it is granted automatically provided it’s a reasonable request.  I mean if you live in San Diego and you want the hearing in San Francisco that’s probably not going to happen but as long as it’s a, you know, I live in San Diego.  I don’t want to have it at the school district; I want to have it at the District Office or something like that.  

If the parent makes a request, it’s automatically granted and it’s up to the District to file a motion to have a move back to the District location explaining why it wouldn’t be appropriate at the other location.  If the District needs it to be moved to another location it is considered a motion and the parent has a chance to respond before it’s ruled on.  Now we do it that way because the law says it has to be a location convenient to the parent.  So their request is automatically granted and it’s up to the District to un-grant it.

MS. VANAMAN:  Does that really work?

MR. WEINER:  Judge Laba?

JUDGE LABA:  That’s been the policy.

MS. JOHNSON:  Okay, because I requested it and it was denied.  So that’s why --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, hold on.  We’ve got something from Southern California.

JUDGE LABA:  I can’t comment on your individual case.  I don’t know what happened.

MR. WEINER:  Judge Laba, does that include a represented parent, like if the attorney for a parent requests that the hearing be held at OAH’s office?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes because you’re making the request on behalf of the parent.

MR. WEINER:  And the judges -- the judges all know that?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes, they should.  

MR. WEINER:  Okay.

JUDGE LABA:  Let me clarify something.  

MR. WEINER:  That hasn’t been my experience.

JUDGE LABA:  Let me clarify that when the request comes in writing ahead of time before the hearing, it is made to the calendar clerk will automatically reset it to the parents’ location unless it’s something really out of the way.  When you make the request at hearing it’s at the discretion of the judge and they will make a decision based upon the oral arguments that are heard at the hearing.  

MS. SILVERMAN:  I think that that’s what I have found that -- I know that in Northern  --

JUDGE LABA:  Right.

MS. SILVERMAN:  -- and there’s not really a problem with that unless that request is made at a prehearing conference or a week before the hearing where there may not be a room available that it shouldn’t be used to cause a delay --

JUDGE LABA:  Right.

MS. SILVERMAN:  -- and then it would be back to the -- perhaps the school district.  But if it’s made far enough in advance, my understanding is that it’s typically granted by OAH.  Yes.

MR. MR. REZOWALLI:  I have a question.  If a parental request is granted and it’s not an OAH’s responsibility for setting up the room and making sure the incidentals will be there, the parents or school districts.  If it’s not in the school district and it’s not at OAH.  Is that the choices?

JUDGE LABA:  Let’s say for example that the parents wanted to request that the hearing be moved from the local school district to your SELPA office.  We’d clearly have to contact your SELPA office first to make sure that that’s a possibility and that you have space available et cetera.  That’s not a typical thing that happens.  

Typically it’s we want to move to our OAH office.  That’s more reasonable.  Obviously we don’t have control over anybody else’s facilities.  We can set the school district and we can set our office.  That’s about the limit of where can set without contacting you first.

MS. SMITH:  All right, so I just want to make sure that you can set it but it’s not going to be done at additional cost to the school district.

JUDGE LABA:  No.

MS. SMITH:  Okay.

JUDGE LABA:  No.  And there have been instances where we’ve had to have them at a hotel or something like that and we bear that cost.

MR. MR. REZOWALLI:  Who sets up the hotel?

JUDGE LABA:  We would do all that.  Now that’s an extreme situation.  Don’t get any ideas, especially in this day and age.  No, that was an extreme situation.  Very, very extreme.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  Down South?

MS. STEEL:  We have two so --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. STEEL:  And we have a public comment.

MS. SMITH:  Speaking on behalf of districts, you talked about the fact that if a parent made a request it was automatically granted and I’m guessing, I’m wanting to know if there is some question of reasonableness.  

So if a parent asks that a hearing be moved 80 miles away from the district, I really question whether or not that’s reasonable.  In Southern California you could have something that is 80 to 100 miles away from the OAH office which really does create an undue burden in terms of witnesses.  Is there some consideration on whether or not a parent request is reasonable?

JUDGE LABA:  Richard, would you like to take that one?

JUDGE CLARK:  Well, I will share in -- my experience is a little bit different than what you described about it being automatically granted.  I would say generally they’re granted.

JUDGE LABA:  That’s a better word.

JUDGE CLARK:  There’s always room to evaluate the request and we’ve had requests where the city was in one county they want to move it to a completely separate county two counties away and that just doesn’t seem reasonable.  So there’s always sort of a touchstone of reasonableness to the request.  So it’s always evaluated.  It’s not just automatic.

JUDGE LABA:  Thank you.  That was a much better explanation that I gave and that’s actually correct.  There is -- that’s what I meant by within reason.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Sure, sure.  But is --

MS. SAVAGE:  Steve Weiner, did you have something?

MR. WEINER:  Yeah.  I made a request to move a Santa Monica hearing to either OAH office.  I didn’t really care whether it was at Van Nuys or in Los Angeles.  That was denied.  And generally these districts oppose it on the grounds that it’s terribly inconvenient for their staff, they’ll have to hire people to serve as substitutes for longer in the day, they may be called to come down to OAH’s offices and find out that their testimony isn’t to be given on that day.  So I’d like to have some idea.  I agree that going 80 to 100 miles is inconvenient.  

It’s also pretty inconvenient for me to spend $50,000 in a hotel having a hearing, which I’ve done, but what are going to be the grounds for, you know, the District opposing having it at OAH’s offices?  

As far as my personal view is that none of these should be at a District office.  You wind up in a cramped little room.  You never have access to your own room.  It -- and it doesn’t give you the feeling that what’s going on is unbiased in any sense whatever.  Instead you feel like it’s a -- you know, you’re on the District’s turf.  So what kind of grounds, other than someone having to travel 80 to 100 miles, are going to be good cause for opposing that kind of motion?

JUDGE LABA:  We need recommendations from the Committee on how to handle that another way if you’d like us to consider some other way of handling that.

MR. WEINER:  I’d like them granted as long as they don’t require the District rep to travel more than 80 miles.

MS. BROCK:  I have a comment.  The OAH office in Oakland, parking is difficult.  It’s about $20 a day.  And then all your witnesses have to pay for parking and all the teachers have to pay for parking and the traffic alone is unbelievable just getting there and you can’t get parked unless you’ve got a parking permit because parking doesn’t open up until 10:00.  So it’s extremely expensive.  It’s extremely inconvenient, but I understand the concern about having it at the District facilities as well.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  I’ve got a couple comments from the web and then we’ve got a public comment up here.  One from the web:  

“I requested that the case not be held at a particular SELPA and was told it had to be.”  

The second comment -- so I will guess this was from a parent kind of questioning the blanket rule that was then modified.  The second is:  

“I am concerned about incestuous relationships and conflicts of interest between the judges and public agencies.  In San Diego it is very difficult to get an unbiased hearing.  Judges in many cases are not following the law but rather systematically siding with public agencies.”  

And then it’s kind of on the topic of having everyone in the same -- at a District office.  Did we have a public comment?

Man from Public:  If I would have known this earlier that we could invite ourselves in I would have made this comment earlier as well so I apologize for backtracking just a little bit.  Actually there are themes to the current conversation as well as the prior conversation and that is that I want to go back and revisit the issue that when both parties stipulate that that in and of itself is -- should be considered common cause for a continuance.  

I’d just like to suggest that that may or may not be in the best interest of children while it’s at the convenience of adults and likewise what I’m hearing right now is a conversation about the convenience of adults at the possible expense of children as well.  

When we’re pulling teachers out of classrooms, speech therapists that are hard to find in the first place or whatever else out of the classrooms that has to do with the wellbeing of children.  And so my input -- I’m a (inaudible) dad and assistant to (inaudible) to SELPA -- my input is that OAH please try to balance the needs of the grownups with the actual on the ground validity of the children involved.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Eliza?

MS. MCARTHUR:  I just want a quick question because I haven’t been able to find what I’m looking for in the draft here.  Before we talk about the bases of reasonableness, is it clear to parents who are getting this response to their request, either granted or not granted -- well, granted automatically assuming there is good reason -- is it clear to the parents that they have to provide a reason?  Is it in the manual?  I just can’t find it.

JUDGE LABA:  No.  I don’t know if it’s in the manual.  Put it on the list and we’ll --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Can you put it on the list, Dana, since you’re holding that and that precedes the conversation about the substantive bases of course.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so, Steve Weiner, is there something you wanted to have us make a motion on or is it just a request for clarification from OAH regarding the location?

MR. WEINER:  Well, I’d like some -- yeah, I’d like some clarification on this because I understand that, you know, parking in Oakland can be expensive but in Santa Monica, you have to leave the hearing room every two hours to go feed the meter outside.  You know, there’s no place for witnesses to park.  It’s really a horrible place to have a hearing and so there ought to be some -- I mean on the one hand we started this with Judge Laba saying that there appears to be some effort by OAH to grant these requests and I have yet to see that.  Unless it’s, you know, both parties agree that a hearing will be held at OAH’s offices.  And, you know, I don’t think that this should be looked at as being something that’s inconvenient to children.  

Having school districts take positions that are unsupportable by law is also something that’s really not beneficial to children.  Having a hearing in a mutual location is beneficial to all the parties and I think it brings to bear on the process some sense of the seriousness of what is going on which is lost when, you know, teachers and staff can, you know, just show up and they’re not in what looks like a real courtroom.  I mean if you go into Laguna into one of those courtrooms, you know you’re in a real courtroom.

MS. SAVAGE:  So is your -- is your request that OAH give guidance to --

MR. WEINER:  I’d like to know what the rule is.  I mean I don’t know what the rule is and I don’t know that OAH has a rule.  I think it’s being applied on a basis, you know, depending upon what one judge thinks about where it should be held or it should not be held.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  I’m going to take Eliza’s topic and comment.  If you don’t have anything else, then we’re going to move on.

MS. MCARTHUR:  I just wanted to add two things to the discussion.  One is that I think this is a much broader issue of perceptions and perceptions are terribly important.  

I, for instance, disagree strongly with the perception that OAH sides with public agencies in certain areas and so forth but the fact that the perception exists is terribly harmful as much as I consider it to be in this perception.  I presume that it’s important to OAH and it should be important to all of us.  

Therefore, and for the same reason, I believe that having a neutral space is important to all of us to really feel that we’re treated in a neutral sense, if not having a neutral space causes people to misperceive.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We have a couple comments from the web:  

“However, often districts respond to request for change in location saying it’s inconvenient for District employees who will testify throughout the day closer to their work.  That should not be an acceptable excuse.”  

And then there’s another comment that came in:

“Cases quote decisions show that judges focus more on a quote basic core of opportunity rather than meaningful educational benefit for the student.  This is highly concerning.  Commentator believes the ALJ’s need more training under basic core of opportunity standard.  Any offer the district makes will be sufficient.”  

We’ll save that for the training topic.  The -- 

MS SILVERMAN:  I just wanted to make a brief comment on all of this -- these comments regarding location.  I can just say that it’s just not that easy and districts have a very hard time finding rooms in the first place, especially rooms that can be set up like hearing rooms.  It’s just not that easy and I think, to me, it’s like wherever we can get space to have a hearing is of the utmost priority.  If we could do it at OAH, that would be great.  It’s just a joke to find space to begin with.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’re now on Exhibit -- oh, yes, sorry.  Barbara?

MS. SMITH:  I wanted to make a comment.  You know, often parents want to have hearings at our District office because they don’t want to be that far away from their other children or from their disabled child during the course of the hearing and I would - I cannot -- you know, I have no idea what the problem is in Santa Monica but I don’t think you should be putting in solutions to problems that don’t exist statewide.  

But look at each case on a case-by-case basis and perhaps where there is a geographical problem as you described in Santa Monica there could be some creative solution that stops between the point of all parents going around to OAH offices and also having to travel as far as obviously that would make you travel.  

MR. WEINER:  But this is something that’s at a parent request.  I mean if a parent doesn’t want it I won’t request it.

MS. SMITH:  I heard you say, Steven, that blanketly all hearings should be going on at OAH offices so that they would always be in a neutral location and I don’t think that’s a necessarily good solution all the way for every place in the State of California.

MR. WEINER:  I agree with you.  And I’d like to change that.  Not clarify it.  I thought I was talking about parents.

MS. SMITH:  Okay.

MR. WEINER:  I’m talking about parents.  I think the District should still have to make motions.  

MS. STEEL:  We have another comment.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  So as a parent can we have -- as a rule can we have an option to have the hearing at the District’s office and or OAH’s office.  I mean can I have the option?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  I think that was what was talked about by Judge Laba, if I’m wrong, that if a parent makes that request to have it moved to OAH it would be granted almost --

JUDGE LABA:  Generally.

MS. SAVAGE:  -- almost always.  But I think that’s a good question.  Do you want to make a motion about that in terms of if a parent makes a request it should be granted or are you comfortable with the almost always or generally standard?

MR. WEINER:  No, I’m comfortable.  I’m comfortable making a motion that -- that if a parent requests that a hearing be held at a location other than the school district and the location isn’t unreasonably far from the school district that it should automatically be granted.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Let’s vote on it and then if people have discussion we can go from there.  All those in favor?  We have one, two, three, four, five up here.  

MS. STEEL:  Five here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All those opposed?  Four.  

MS. STEEL:  Two.

MS. SAVAGE:  Two?  Those with no opinion?  And then we’ll wait for Christine’s and bring it in.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  There’s no one to abstain.

MS. SAVAGE:  Oh, sorry.  Got it.  Okay.  

MS. STEEL:  What was the opposed down -- for you guys?  We have five support, what was the opposition there?

MS. SAVAGE:  Four.  Are you wanting to know our numbers?

MS. STEEL:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  We had -- okay, so we had five in favor and four opposed.

MS. BARDET:  And Roberta, could you repeat the motion so I’m sure I get it.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.  I think Steve Weiner -- Steve, can you repeat your motion?

MR. WEINER:  Yes.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I think we just voted on it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  I just want to get it down here.

MR. WEINER:  If a parent requests that a hearing be held at a location other than the District -- a district office that it be automatically granted unless the location requested by the parent is unreasonably far from the District.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And then just so Southern California, you know Christine English voted and strongly agreed.  Okay, I will take a couple more comments.

MS. MCARTHUR:  I didn’t have a comment. I think I want a different motion but I think what I’m doing -- what I’m suggesting is really what’s going on right now which is requiring us to provide some basis and then that is analyzed as to whether or not it’s reasonable so it’s slightly different from Steve’s in terms of burden --

MS. SAVAGE:  So you want to --

MS. MCARTHUR:  -- presumption and -- but I think it’s what’s kind of what’s been going on so I think the oppositions should like this.  Do you not think so?

MS SILVERMAN:  I think so.  I mean I think the reality is the parents have made this motion in the past and OAH says if there’s room available at OAH you can have a hearing there and there’s not the space.

MS. SAVAGE:  Do you guys want to make -- why don’t you make --

MS. MCARTHUR:  No, I think we’re fine.  We’re fine.  I just needed --

MS. BROCK:  I just had a quick comment that, you know, they continue to say there is no space anywhere else but you know, there are churches, there’s City Hall, there’s recreation departments -- 

FEMALE:  Chamber of Commerce.

MS. BROCK:  -- the Chamber of Commerce, places like that that I think we can be a little bit more creative than just saying we, you know, this school or the OAH office.

MS. JOHNSON:  You’re right.  That means they’re advocates for the student.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’re going to move --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  And it could be close to the school which is what --

MS. MCARTHUR:  Exactly.  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’re going to move on to Exhibit Tab Designations.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Just a point of order or information on the Etiquette Decorum, I think the attachment here from the Superior Court in this district is on pro se litigants is not on the Disability Rules.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  This court -- I don’t know the genesis of this whole discussion but these are not the --

MS. SAVAGE:  Not a point.

MR. READ:  What was that, Steve?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  In the back of the packet are rules for pro se litigants in Superior Court and US District Court and other District, I don’t think -- 

MS. VANAMAN:  There are no disability rules attached to this packet.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

JUDGE LABA:  Sorry about that.  We don’t have the information on that.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Maybe next time.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Exhibit Tab Designations, any discussion?  Okay, all right.  Introduction of Evidence at Hearing, anyone?  Okay.  If I did -- I don’t see any discussion.  I’m going to move on to Subpoena Duces Tecum.  

MS. SILVERMAN:  I’m sorry.  Can we go back?  I know since the last time that we met it’s been -- I know that there’s been some difference in the way ALJ’s are looking at Exhibit Tab designations.  Is this something where there’s been any action taken?

MS. SAVAGE:  You know, Sherri --

JUDGE LABA:  Training was provided to all the ALJ’s to conform with what we have here.

MS. SILVERMAN:  They are.

JUDGE LABA:  But there’s difficulty let me know.

MS. SILVERMAN:  All right.

JUDGE LABA:  I will do additional training.

MS. SILVERMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

JUDGE LABA:  Do I need to do additional training?

MS. BROCK:  Yeah, I just had -- the districts were asked to provide exhibits with letters.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  I will reiterate.

MS. BROCK:  Thank you.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Jonathan.

MR. READ:  I just had a question.  So the tabs need -- all those tabs need to have either an S or D on them?  Is that correct?

JUDGE LABA:  No.  Not with our -- that was our request that you put like an S, just write it in there.  You don’t have to type it out.  But talk with your judges about that.

MS. SILVERMAN:  On each tab?

JUDGE LABA:  That was what we had intended and that’s what we asked the judges to tell you.  Just write it in.  I’m not saying you have to type it out.

MS. SILVERMAN:  There’s no room on the --

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SILVERMAN:  We refer to the binders as S-one 

 or --

MS. VANAMAN:  Are we part of the meeting?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  Absolutely.  We’re trying.

MR. WEINER:  The conversation we had in Southern California last time had in large part to do with kind of reducing the administration of due process and getting these binders together and we talked a lot about how, you know, collectively we had a significant amount of experience in due process and it had never really been an issue however the parties decided to write on their tabs.  

My concern is that if you go to Office Depot you can buy a bunch of tabs that say one, two, three or a, b, c; but to make both parties write S and D on them that can take a lot of time and my request would then be that we just -- the judges just have some flexibility because we’re going to be able to tell whose evidence is whose.

MS. SAVAGE:  Anyone else down there?

MS. SILVERMAN:  Can I just make one comment?

MS. SAVAGE:  Let me just check.  Anyone else down in Southern California have some comments on it or -- 

MR. WEINER:  Yeah, I would like to ditto those remarks.  We bates stamp all of our documents and it’s easy enough to bates stamp every page starting with an S but we create a whole cottage industry for, you know, creating tabs that start with S and D. 

MS. VANAMAN:  That’s a business recruit.  I haven’t seen any -- make them special order I think I’ll do that.  

MS. SAVAGE:  So is that a motion that Valerie’s office make all of tabs?

MR. WEINER:  Right.

MS. SAVAGE:  At no cost to parents, right?  Okay, so let’s -- Paul?

MR. McIVER:  Just a reminder that the world is not divided into two, that sometimes there are third parties and that needs to be factored in, too.

MS. SAVAGE:  So what letter do you want to write?  C, M or H?

MR. McIVER:  I don’t care.

JUDGE LABA:  I just need to make one comment.  Remember that this isn’t just about ease at the hearing.  Whatever you do has to be understandable on appeal and so 

if -- you have to understand how the packages get put together for appeal.  

So that is why we would like the tabs with the designation because if the state can have the binders and something falls out of the binder, how is the Court on appeal going to know which exhibit belongs to which person.  So it’s broader than just -- I understand the judge can figure it out but just think about that in making a recommendation.

MS. SAVAGE:  So I will -- 

MS SILVERMAN:  My experience on appeal is that there -- the Federal courts are mostly ordering us to --

(Overlapping voices)

MS SILVERMAN:  They’re ordering us to bates stamp the entire record on appeal.  So we’re referencing bates stamps and that the, you know, whether it’s Exhibit One and it’s from a Student’s Binder versus a Districts and then my personal comment is it’s hard to figure out when we get the package from OAH setting it aside which was which anyway because they -- it’s not put together.  

My copies are never kind of secured so I don’t get a copy of the student’s evidence that’s secured, it’s more rubber banded.  But the Federal courts are forcing us to bates stamp.

MS. SAVAGE:  Anyone else?

MS. VANAMAN:  Roberta?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MR. WEINER:  You know, rather than have S and D -- I’ve never had more than 400 exhibits so, you know, I would think if the parents can have the first 499 and then the District could start at 500 that would be less of a burden on the parents to go get 1 through 499 than have to go put S on 1 through 50 or whatever.

MS. VANAMAN:  It works fine whatever people do.  The whole problem is that we use the alphabet, it was really cumbersome to be at AAA which what you were forcing us to do and those are impossible to find.  So if you identify them -- I mean most of them are sequentially numbering them.  They’ve got a bates stamp with an S or D in front of them or DNH or Third Party, whatever it is.  And you know there’s a lot of flexibility.  This is one where they ought to allow the judges the flexibility.  Just don’t make us use letters because those are really difficult to produce.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And Dana?

MS. JOHNSON:  Just off the top if you bates stamp, there’s a handbook and something now you just brought to my attention that you need it for appeal process and again these are things that I keep hearing new information on when I come to these meetings -- bless you -- that things I have never heard of and never reviewed anything like that (inaudible) these things are going to be possible to get into the handbook.

JUDGE LABA:  Just keep a list and give us a list of and we’ll make sure it’s in there.

MS. JOHNSON:  I don’t even know what bates stamp is to be perfectly honest.

JUDGE LABA:  It’s a stamp every time you click it, it changes numbers.  Kids love to play with it.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And we just have a comment from the web regarding the time of travel to a hearing and representation during a hearing.  

“A parent who is also an attorney representing the child should be entitled to recover attorney’s fees and costs on occasion because they sacrifice their earnings to participate as an attorney for their child.”

MS. MCARTHUR:  That’s been dealt with by case.  I don’t think we should be addressing that.

MS. BROCK:  And the binders.  They mark student in the binding or your district.  So as you consult the binders a student binder or a district binder even if it contains numbers.  And it’s everybody’s evidence, what was entered into evidence.  So it doesn’t seem like we’d need to write on every single tab district or student.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. STEEL:  I have a question.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. STEEL:  Is it time for like a five minute break?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  Let me just read this one comment and then we can go on to a break.  

“Why not just assign exhibits 1 to 299 to the first party then 300 to 499 to the next party then 500 to 699 to the next?” 

And I guess we can do that except for Mr. Weiner’s goes up to 499.

MR. WEINER:  You know, I know I’ve been at this for quite a while but I think if you’re just going through the recommendations from the October meeting I think there’s only two more left.  Maybe we could go through those quickly and then take the break so we can start with the agenda.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Is that okay?

MR. WEINER:  Sorry everybody.

MS. SAVAGE:  One, two, three, four, five, six --

MR. WEINER:  I’m sorry.  I was looking at the wrong page.  All right.  Never mind then.

MS. SAVAGE:  And when we get back we’re going to have fly because we have an hour and a half to -- so let's take a five minute break and when we come back my military -- my dad’s military training will come in -- 

(Off the Record)

MS. SAVAGE:  We also wanted to talk about the pamphlet.  Is there anything else on the response that Southern California wants to talk about?  

MR. WEINER:  It doesn’t appear so.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, great.  So let’s start with the improvements.  We’re on page five of OAH’s response, the improvements of ALJ mediator training.  I know we have a public comment up here.  Is there any comment in Southern California on the training issue?

MS. STEEL:  On the parent training?

MS. SAVAGE:  No, no, the ALJ training.

MS. STEEL:  The mediator training.  I was looking at the next -- I think one of the -- and I’m bringing up some of the recommendations -- we’re going to have some public comment but I actually am bringing a recommendation from several families that are also present, too, which is that the families actually are involved in the mediator and hearing officer training -- that, you know, you have, you know, other professionals but you really need parents of students with disabilities participating.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Do we have a comment up here?  Come forward.

WOMAN PARENT:  We, as parents, are concerned that appropriate qualificational experience is demanded and required of a person’s actual training.  Possibly with University affiliation standard -- standard (inaudible) is required for, for instance in our case, autism for behavior analyst, the highest level of qualification be reviewed, be leveled, people who have certification in behavior analysis from national agencies, et cetera.  

So we’re very concerned with the quality of the education and opportunity that folks have in the ALJ office is brought up to a level that is one that show evidence-based types of interventions and therapies and so forth instead of sort of hearsay or by (inaudible) that we’ve seen presented to ALJ’s that have (inaudible) of training so in order to give these folks the opportunity to have the best training possible.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Do you have anything else down in Southern California?

MS. STEEL:  Anybody else want to make a comment about training for the officers?  We have one more public --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, let’s take you guys first and then we have a public comment.

MS. STEEL:  Interpreter.  We need you to translate.

Interpreter:  First of all good morning.  My name is Lupita Saccore.  I have an eight year old son who is autistic.  I belong to the group Tigers.  In the (inaudible) we have here we work and are class advisors and we take it to the community.  We are here to ask you for your help and to let you know why so many of our parents are not getting due process.  We are too many things that you can’t imagine.  

Imagine an elephant and a bat.  The elephant is the school district and the bat is us, the parents.  On one side the elephant has the money, the professionals and the help of a law office.  And on the other hand us, the parents, who have a disabled child who got help with a lot of hope and wish their children could move forward because we know that they are capable that they can go to the university and they can receive a college diploma and they can work with dignity like us who pay taxes.  

You don’t have an idea what percentage of the families don’t even know the process.  They -- of course they don’t even know the definition in Spanish of the due process.  You are -- we open the door to our homes so that you can meet our children, that you can see the hard road that we have to walk.  But we have to become experts in OT therapy, speech therapy, in all the therapies and besides that we have to know about law.  

What would (inaudible) like that is people were successful but we know that even though we may have the representation of a good lawyer the cases that are going to your desks are getting lost.  

Your Honor, you have the power to make that path for us hard for all our families and we ask you not only to you as professionals but to the fathers or mothers that love and that many times would give his or her life for their child.  Make us capable.  Make more information accessible to us.  Learn about the disease; also know about their abilities so that in that same way you can understand that a therapy or a service within our time would mean either the failure or the success of our child.  Minimize the difference between the elephant and the bat.  Thank you for listening to me.

MS. STEEL:  Did you want to make another public comment on OAH training?

Interpreter:  My name is (inaudible) and I’m a person with a disability and I also have a child who is disabled.  And I help the community and I see the parents who are both mute and deaf.  They have no access to the process because first of all in due process that translated into Spanish in a way that the parents can understand.  

The biggest barrier is communication because they’re not -- they cannot talk, there is a problem if they have to use another person to communicate in sign language.  (Inaudible) I would like the committee (inaudible) which is the multiple type thing for a person who (inaudible).  Thank you.

MS. SAVAGE:  Thank you.

MS. MCARTHUR:  We also have a public comment here.

JUDGE LABA:  We have a comment on the internet in Spanish so we have someone here who’s going to read it. You need a minute to go through it?  Okay, go ahead.

MS. SAVAGE:  So we also have a public comment up here.

Public Comment:  My name is Chris Rodriguez and I’m (inaudible) from the office of Education and I would like to make a comment regarding the training as far as the ALJ and mediators.  

I certainly agree with the comment from down South that suggested perhaps parent input on that training would be beneficial.  I would also like to suggest that the District perspective also be presented in that training.  

I think that many of the issues that I see coming up I also really agree that it would be really beneficial if we could have ALJ’s attend some IEP meetings to see what actually goes on.  

I think it is difficult to make judgments about what’s really going on without having seen the process in action.  So I think that would be a vital part of training.  But I do reflect that what -- you know, the comments the parents are making but I also want to share that there is another perspective out there.  

There are teachers that work really hard.  They do everything they can for kids and I want to make sure that that perspective is also shared and validated.  Thank you. 

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’re still waiting for the comment up there.  There’s a comment I think is sort of related from the web:  

“As a parent who has represented my child at a hearing -- hearings -- I’ve heard from judges this phrase: ‘unless congress specifically gives us direction’ we will not review this issue even though congress has given clear and specific direction.  This happens at State hearings and at Federal court.  The judges are not trained to follow the law and they truly don’t know the laws pertaining to students with disabilities.  There’s absolutely no respect for pro se parents by ALJ’s.”

We’re still waiting for the comment in Spanish.  I’ll just go through a couple of the other comments we have from the web.  

“In the discussion of the hearing location what defines reasonable.  Would there be a radius?  Also who would find the alternative location and pay for it?  Generally the District offices are free.  Also if it is too far for the District this may create a disruption of teachers’ instruction or undue financial burden for both parties. 

And I do think that we’ve -- in our discussion hit a lot of those topics.

There was a concern from a person in the audience:

“To vote five to four in most cases here today and there are five student representatives and four District representatives -- “

I’m guessing they’re talking about Northern California though I could be wrong.

“ -- it appears to be the same way in Southern California.  The question:  Does OAH consider unequal representation in considering recommendations?”

JUDGE LABA:  What was the breakdown?  Because we’re a heavy parent (inaudible) district.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  It’s five to four.  

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  Do you take that into consideration --

JUDGE LABA:  We just take the recommendations into consideration and all the discussions that are happening.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  Okay.  And then finally on the exhibits:  

“Great idea re exhibits.  Students are exhibits 1 to 500 and Districts are 500.”

And then our comment on the training:  

“The parents don’t have a due process because there is no respect for parents.  There’s no Spanish translation and there’s no process that actually works.  The system is broken down.  Nobody trains the parents and the Federal funds are used in their programs for State employees' salaries.” 

And I hope I got that right.  Okay.  Steve?

MR. WEINER:  I just want to know -- I don’t think that all the opinions expressed here come down along District, student lines, student and attorneys for the District.  I think it’s -- there’s been a lot of crossover.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. STEEL:  Yeah.  Remember we have an agency as well so we have District, parents and we have Mental Health Care, too.  So we just have to make sure we respect those.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.

MS. STEEL:  Everybody that’s here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Is there anything we want to add to the discussion of the ALJ mediator training, other than the public comments we’ve had?

MS. STEEL:  And the recommendation that parents 

are -- and parents of children with disabilities participate in some way in the training.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so --

MS. MCARTHUR:  The District.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so Janeen, do you want to start with a motion?

(Overlapping conversations)

MS. STEEL:  Okay, so there are parents that participate I assume with disabilities currently?

JUDGE LABA:  I have to think about which training and what’s planned but we -- depending on which training specifically it is we’ve had parents on panels, we’ve had parents come in and give training.  Richard, in November weren’t -- there were parents that participated in that training, correct?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes.  For the Seattle training, definitely.  They took up one morning.  We had parents from two -- two families from Seattle were down talking about their experiences.  Actually one was from California and one was from Washington.

MS. STEEL:  Do you do any training about how to work with interpreters and translation, because it is a difference, right?  Having to understand, you know, how to monitor, how to make sure that everybody’s getting the information.  So is that included in -- because I’m really -- I mean I’m concerned because like relying on Google to translate is not (inaudible).  I mean it doesn’t translate correctly so --

JUDGE LABA:  Any time that you’d like us to address any training topics just give us that recommendation.  We’re always looking for good training topics so just be as specific as possible and if you know someone that can do it and would be a recommendation, give us that as well.  We’ll be happy to check into it.

MS. SAVAGE:  I would make a motion that OAH include in their training training on what Janeen’s just talked about, the use of interpreter and translation in the hearing process.

MR. WEINER:  I second it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Let’s do a showing of hands in support of that.  We’re unanimous up here.  

MS. VANAMAN:  Not just the hearing process the whole process.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, Janeen?

MS. VANAMAN:  The mediation process also.

MS. SAVAGE:  The mediation process also?  Okay, we would -- our votes would be in agreement with that.  What’s your vote down there?

MS. STEEL:  Was anybody opposed?  I don’t think anybody was opposed.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, so it was unanimous across.  Unless Christine is going to say no.  We have two -- okay, Christine agrees so we have unanimous.  We have public comment and then we have what do you call it?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Can we -- do we have a minute?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.  

MS. STEEL:  Can we have the motion read back just so we make sure that we have a document of what we have voted on?

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.  My motion was -- want to read it?

MS. BARDET:  Yes.  Roberta moved to include interpreters in appearing in the mediation process.

MS. SAVAGE:  In the training.

MS. BARDET:  Well, yeah, training.

MS. SAVAGE:  These have not been reviewed yet.

MS. SAVAGE:  Did you get that?

MS. STEEL:  Yes.  Thank you.

(Inaudible)

JUDGE LABA:  I can explain that.  

(Inaudible)

JUDGE LABA:  If you’re going to need to be -- in order to have all this on the web in a way that you can search and pull out certain things I need a data base so we can manage it.  So currently we have a drop the shelf 

product -- we’ve got a couple (inaudible) that would be something simple and inexpensive to purchase that would work with everybody.  We’re trying to do that.  

We do maintain an Excel spreadsheet but that’s not transferable onto the website in a manner that would be helpful to anybody.  So they are available on public request if somebody would like them we happily give them.  Just let us know who you’d like to get them from and submit that copy of it too.  But Richard, do you remember what the deadline is we put down for a researching that data base?

JUDGE CLARK:  No, Sherri.  I don’t have the date with me.

JUDGE LABA:  No, I don’t remember.  But I know what the --

JUDGE CLARK:  Within six months.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  It was a goal before the end of this fiscal year to accomplish that.  

(Inaudible)

MS. STEEL:  Can we move to the next subject?

MS. BROCK:  I just have a comment.

MS. SAVAGE:  What we’re -- what they were talking about is there was a public question about what obstacles were in place preventing OAH from posting the ALJ training on the web.

MS. VANAMAN:  Oh, okay.

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  I thought we were on search.

MS. BROCK:  I have a comment.  And that because it’s not up on the web yet and the public records request I made came after my hearing, I would recommend that you 

send -- until it’s up on the web -- that when you determine which hearing officer it is you send the parties the ALJ training because what I’m finding in the ALJ training is that it’s imbalanced.  It doesn’t -- it’s, you know, you look at one ALJ and they’ve got, you know, training in a number of areas.  You have other who are less experienced ALJ’s and they don’t have training specifically in the area that your hearing is in and I just don’t -- I believe that either we need to shorten the time of the public records request or just automatically send out the ALJ training to --

MS. SAVAGE:  Southern California, did you get that?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MR. WEINER:  I’m not sure.  I’m not sure what that’s going to prove.  I mean, you know, generally, you know, if you want to see what an ALJ is going to rule you can pull the OAH decisions that have been issued and you get a sense of what issues that judge has considered and how they’ve ruled on them.  

The fact that they may -- they’ve all been trained.  The fact that they may have or may not have been trained on a particular issue or not doesn’t mean that they’re going to, you know, get it right or get it wrong.  It depends, you know, how it’s presented, how much time they spend with it, what kind of time they do research in.  

So I’m not sure that the training is that (inaudible) but I mean I think telling people that if you’re thinking of challenging a judge the first thing you ought to do is go look at the decisions that that judge has entered and get a sense for how that judge has analyzed issues and ruled on them.

MS. BROCK:  But if they’re new judges you can’t get that information, so -- and to get public records requests it takes a tremendous amount of time.

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  I’d like to get us back on track.  Can we get back to the last subject?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We just have a short comment and then we’ll move on.

MS. JOHNSON:  I just had a question.  You said that you’re always looking for new training.  How much is like OAH willing to pay?  Will they fly someone in?  Will they like, you know, how -- because I have somebody that contacted me via the website and was asking me these questions and I didn’t have an answer.

JUDGE LABA:  It entirely depends.

MS. JOHNSON:  It entirely depends.

JUDGE LABA:  The best thing to do is submit the information and the training and if it fits in someplace and we can do it.  I can’t say there’s a specific amount.

MS. JOHNSON:  Okay.

MS. SAVAGE:  And Christine just wants to know if Advisory Committee members can participate in the training.

JUDGE LABA:  You mean be presented or come to the training?

MS. SAVAGE:  I -- can Advisory Committee members participate in ALJ training?

JUDGE LABA:  It depends.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So we’re going to move on.  I think our next topic is the search engine, the website search engine.  

JUDGE LABA:  Do you want me to tell you what we’ve done?

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.

JUDGE LABA:  What we did is we met with OTR which is our computer gurus and we talked about the two options.  Well, we talked about first the primary recommendation which was pull down menus.  The pull down menus also require a separate data base in order to facilitate the pull downs because what happens is you then have to take every decision and categorize them to fit into the different items that are on the pull down menu and it has to be put into a data base so you can pull it out when you search for those particular items.  

We don’t have a data base system that can support that at the current time.  So as an interim fix what we 

did -- we want to see how it works, give it a try, report back maybe at the next Advisory.  In the meantime we’ll keep researching possible data base applications.  

What we did in the meantime was we created separate search fields so when you look at the search engine there’s a separate search field for like District name.  Just type it in there and it will search for that so it will help in easing the methods of searching.  So you can type in specific information.  

The one thing I do want to say is please remember that what I had found for some people who use it say I can’t find my order up there, I can’t find something on my case.  It’s not a status of the case search engine.  It’s every decision that’s been published and some select orders.  

Now we will be starting to publish more orders February 1st because that was the request that you made.  We are going to start to do that.  So as an interim fix we have the separate fields.  Do you want me to put it up really fast?  But give it a try.  Give us some feedback on how that’s working.  In the meantime we’re going to continue to research possible data base systems that can be purchased and used to manipulate the data.  

Remember then it would be a matter of determining what are the pull downs and categorizing all the old decisions for a determination as to whether or not we just start from fresh from one day and not include old decisions or how it would work so a lot’s going to depend on if we can find a data base system that will work that way and is flexible enough, this is the key part, to make the changes that we need.  

One, you have to know about the SEHO system, the one that we used at SEHO that’s a pull down.  Once we made that, that was it.  We couldn’t alter those pull downs.  So when you look at the pull downs it still has Edgar as a topic for pull downs, you know?  And so we want whatever we create to be flexible enough that as the law changes, as topics change, that we aren’t locked into topics that are so old they make no difference to what we do anymore.  

So whatever system we pick has to have a lot of factors involved that allow for the system that we want.  Hopefully what we’ve done so far is helpful and please give any feedback about how it works.  

MS. BARDET:  I’ve tried the new system and, you know, if the IT person is here -- they’re not here.

JUDGE LABA:  They’re not in this building.

MS. BARDET:  Okay.  Because I think that was one of our requests a number of times that we could talk directly to the IT person because I think without this exchange of people who are actually using the system the IT person may not understand and I have tried using -- I (inaudible) down to the old system with no pull down menus we could still find the name of the judge, the case number, the school district and the key word which is only an individual word and doesn’t search for phrases.  

So I, in my experience and several of us were talking about it at break -- that it hasn’t made any substantive difference because it’s not adding anything that wasn’t there before.  So, you know, I appreciate the effort but I think if the IT person could understand why it is not adding benefit I think that would have been very helpful.

JUDGE LABA:  And we have shared all those comments with IT.  You have to understand that they’re IT people and getting them to come to a meeting like this is probably not possible because they are all so (inaudible) by the rules (inaudible) the internet et cetera so we have shared all of those concerns and the reason for a pull down menu would be helpful.  So we are working to correct that but I think that the best an IT person could do for you is to demonstrate a new system which we don’t have at this point.

MS. SAVAGE:  I would agree with Susan’s comments.  My other primary concern is with getting accurate results so if I search for something I want to know I’m getting as many, you know, getting a full accounting of those results and I have not had that experience even with the new system that when I search something I get all the cases that are supposed to be posted.  So I’m concerned we’re not getting the information.  Janeen, do you guys have any comments on the web based system -- the new compared with the old?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’re going to move on.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Can I ask one --

MS. SAVAGE:  Sure.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Judge Laba, is there a way that they can appear by phone at the next meeting for instance -- some IT person for some of these kinds of questions?

JUDGE LABA:  Well -- and what I think that you guys are -- you have to understand this, that the IT is not just what -- I have to talk to somebody at a high level at IT or to consider a system that needs to change because we’re all governed by the Department of General Services of the IT and it kind of trickles down a lot.  

We can -- the best I can do is tell you that we will speak to them again and see whether or not they feel like their participation here would be of any benefit.  But we have shared all of these concerns with them and as I’m telling you the issue is not that we don’t want to do it.  It’s a matter of getting a system that can handle the request that you’re making and we simply don’t have it right now. 

MR. ROSENBAUM:  But maybe for a tutorial.  It just might make sense to have somebody in that conversation --

JUDGE LABA:  Let us talk to IT again and report back their recommendations.  How about that?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay, Janeen, I’m going to turn it to you for the parent pamphlet, the IEP on page seven.

MS. STEEL:  Yeah, I think it’s just -- I haven’t seen -- I don’t know if there’s been a draft yet of the pamphlet.

MS. SAVAGE:  No.

MS. STEEL:  The only recommendation is that, you know, that it should be able to be provided at IEP meetings with enough information that parents know where to go and even the forms because relying on the web page is a real problem because not everybody has access to the internet so just getting, you know -- let’s say that you can go to due process in a procedure and it doesn’t tell you anything because it doesn’t tell you like what it means, you know, what it looks like, you know, so I mean the recommendation would be that there is some -- I mean that in addition to the pamphlet that the forms -- you know the forms on how to apply for due process -- are actually a part of that because basically telling parents to just go to the web isn’t necessarily going to be helpful.

JUDGE LABA:  And let me just say that we -- the pamphlet will be a trifold pamphlet.  It will be very, very basic information about the services that OAH provides.  We will make them available to anybody once that we can send them out to whoever.  I cannot guarantee they will be handed out at IEP meetings.  

All of this information can be provided to the people who should -- who might possibly hand them out at IEP meetings but I have no authority to require them to do so.  But we will make the information available to the public as much as possible.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. JOHNSON:  And we’ll make them available to like regional centers so when parents have their IEP meeting that generally, you know, goes along with the IEP so districts are not willing to do so then they get them there?

JUDGE LABA:  Our plan is to distribute it widely.

MS. JOHNSON:  That’s all I wanted.

MS. BROCK:  So is it also included in the parent's rights paperwork that they could view, too?  I mean --

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  I think some parents are concerned that those are thick and tiny print and that getting something that’s more direct, this is what it is, so I don’t have to read 27 pages or however long --

MS. JOHNSON:  And then it’s often not the right date if it’s past two years of getting --

MS. STEEL:  Yes, I understand that they don’t have to provide an IT at these meetings but the most effective way for parents to have the information is at the time of the disagreement, the time of the dispute, they get in their hands the information which means the list of attorneys, the list of, you know, the forms and the pamphlet.  

Otherwise they’re -- if they’ve never been through the system before they have no idea where to start and the procedural manuals that all the districts have -- you’ve got the mandated information but I think this is the next step.  This is how to.  And that’s -- so I understand it’s just --

MS. CHANG:  I would also suggest the flow chart.  Where they are in terms of what in the process and where they can go and what are the options that parents have.  That would be very good.

MS. SAVAGE:  So are you talking more of having like the parent manual available at the IEP, Janeen, --

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  -- or something condensed from that?

MS. STEEL:  Right.  No. I mean if you think about just the basic information a parent needs to -- never been to due process, doesn’t have, doesn’t know anybody -- remember there’s hundreds of thousands of students, right?  So there’s a lot of parents that have never accessed the system at all and don’t even know and they, you know, they’re not going to know where to even start.

So that’s -- give them the basic information because they’re not even many times getting the list of attorneys that they ask from the school so if in the pamphlet it says, you know, call this number, here’s the flow chart, here’s the form, this is where you get them.  That would be at least the minimum I think.  Right.  It’s like three pages versus just kind of -- do we have one public comment?

MS. BROCK:  They mail that out to you.

MS. JOHNSON:  They mail it?

(Overlapping voices)

MS. STEEL:  Can we have a public comment?

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah.

Interpreter:  We have a few parents who are going through the process, doing everything the district says, okay, you’re going to have this stay put and that’s all.  The parents are like what’s the next step?  (Inaudible) It’s important.  (Inaudible)  How do you go -- how do you start due process?  Sometimes it just remains stable and I don’t know the process and they don’t follow the process.  

MS. STEEL:  All right.  Anybody else?  We have one more.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

Interpreter:  I am Rosa Martinez.  I have two children that are disabled.  I agree with the mother who just made a comment.  I want to make another comment.  I would like to repeat that if I could get information that would be given a sample of how to fill out the information and the other issue is that things typed for parents who don’t have a lawyer and the school district takes advantage of that.  Thank you for listening.

MS. SAVAGE:  Thank you.  Janeen, --

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  I’m another part of the Tiger program and I just want you to know a recommendation I want to (inaudible) regarding a recommendation that (inaudible) and I really like to recommend it (inaudible) saying that we have the right to follow this process of due process but our childs are not going to get any -- how do you say -- discrimination at school.  

I help other parents too who have that program right now with other students at the high school where there is harassment around this and because the (inaudible) start to get information on what is the right to do.  Like with due process.  

So in the manual where you describe what is the mission of the manual and what is your office I really like to see something that is what to do for the parents.  Does it have the -- to take out the fear to be intimidated by the district.  

And another one (inaudible) when you describe the one of the issues that goes to the Office of Hearing (inaudible) for my point of view like for example you say (inaudible) is not related to the school (inaudible) occupational placement can not proceed with your office (inaudible) many Hispanic (inaudible).  

We get this information like for example your issue is regarding to even be in bullets, put in bullets separate, it is more clear.  Division one, bullet two, bullet three and if (inaudible) okay this is not your case you’re not going to see, it does not belong to office because in the translation guide for Yahoo the translation is not clear.  They need to (inaudible).  

MS. SAVAGE:  So thank you and if I just -- the parent or the public, the person who just spoke.  What I understand is you’re asking for a statement at the front of the parent manual that, one, if you access these rights your child will be free from harassment and that, two, clear -- early on in the manual there will be a statement, these are the issues for a due process hearing and these are the issues for somewhere else, and if I have misstated it please just put it in writing and hand it to OAH directly or get your organization together so that they can get the feedback because I think a lot of parents would wonder about the same things.

JUDGE LABA:  Can I ask one clarifying question as well?  I thought I heard you say that because you reviewed the parent manual through the Google translator you were concerned about that translation.  

Let me just verify that once this parent manual is done it will be provided translated in those common languages spoken in California school districts which includes Spanish so right now the draft is just going through Google but the final will be printed in Spanish. 

MS. SAVAGE:  But I think the problem with that is that when you -- and as I understand it the translation for Google is not accurate and so when people are having to translate it because that’s the only way they can review 

it --

JUDGE LABA:  Right now.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  But how can -- there’s difficulty providing feedback.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  I understand.

MS. SAVAGE:  Is that --

JUDGE LABA:  I can only reassure you that it will be --

MS. STEEL:  Right.  But if you want what I was 

told -- after asking several times was it would be translated in Google for them to review it.  I mean that’s really not an adequate way to even offer parents.  It’s actually a disrespectful way to offer parents to review something.  It’s better to translate it correctly than to put something incorrect because I can’t -- you know, they gave several examples.  

That organization, for example, was translated into Organs.  So if you can imagine the kind of misunderstanding that would bring.  So I mean I think that this is -- these are families that deserve to be able to review, to give comments, because guess what?  They are the consumers.  They’re going to be reading it and so I mean I still requested one of the drafts get translated because it would be nice because they -- you know, there are recommendations.  I know it’s later on in the agenda so --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We’ll get that when we get there.  Steve, do you have something on the pamphlet?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I’ll hold it --

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Great.  If we’re not having -- we don’t have anything else on the pamphlet let’s go to the separate core of mediators and ALJ’s.  Yes, down in Southern California.  Valerie.

MS. VANAMAN:  You know, the last meeting I ruminated and was speaking aloud about a concern I had about whether this thing combining mediators and judges is really working.  There was no formal action taken on it.  I certainly didn’t propose a formal plan.  

All of a sudden, every time I show up anywhere I am told I am single-handedly responsible for the fact that we now have a separate corps of mediators and ALJ’s and that somehow it’s all my responsibility.  

One, that would be interesting if I had that authority.  Can I get a lot of other stuff?  But, two, if you ask me I never would have approved this plan.  I never would have said I thought it was a good plan.  

I would like to go on the record that all I was doing at the last meeting in the advisory role that I thought we had was ruminating over whether this has become a problem and I am not responsible for anybody’s (inaudible).  

MS. SILVERMAN:  We’ve had some discussion up here, Valerie.  We -- it was exactly the same and I think that what happened was just a decision --

JUDGE LABA:  Yeah, and please let me put 

everyone -- this is not based upon any single side’s opinion, any single person’s opinion.  And this is something that’s been in discussion at OAH for at least three years and there are multiple reasons for this determination to try this pilot project.  We’re trying it out.  We’re measuring data.  We’re seeing how it works.  It’s a one year pilot project and that’s it at this point.  

As you all know the State has very significant fiscal issues going on right now.  So one of the factors that we’re trying to determine is, is this fiscally a good idea or not a good idea?  You’ve all read our IA with Department of Education.  It actually allows us to hire mediators who are not attorneys.  So we have to first determine if this is a good idea to have people fiscally, just to talk on the fiscal side, do both things.  

The other thing is what effect would this have on settlement rates?  What effect would this have on decision determinations?  There’s lots of different data that need to be analyzed in order to determine whether this way of doing business is in the best interest of all the students out there.  

So this is a purely coincidental that it happened after the last advisory meeting.  It’s something we’ve been talking about for years although at the last meeting you all provided a lot of different options.  We talked about the six months on, six months off.  We talked about a track plan where like you kind of move through different areas.  

We considered lots of different options to try to see if this makes good judicial sense, good fiscal sense, good use of resources, et cetera.  So please, it is not a decision that was made lightly.  We take it very seriously and we’re just trying to see whether or not this is a good way of doing business and effective for all of you.  So your feedback as we go through this is going to be very, very important.

MS. STEEL:  We have a comment.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.

MS. SMITH:  Yeah, I just wondered if it’s really necessary to do it for a whole year before you can figure out if it’s working.  If it does it will substantially reduce the pool of judges who have heard cases because at least Orange County and half of them are not now.  And you know, I’m not sure how that’s going to work in (inaudible) has fought for so long before -- if it’s not working you can change it.

JUDGE LABA:  Let me just say that -- remember that our pool of Special Ed judges are statewide.  They may be located in a regional office but any judge can hear your case in any part of this state.  Same with mediators.  So you’re not limited by the judges that happen to be working out of your particular regional office.  

We ran specific numbers to try and figure out where we needed to allocate the resources and to determine how many people would handle hearings and how many people would handle mediations.  The pilot project also allows for us to move resources if we find that we’ve miscalculated something.  It also allows for people who have been doing one thing for a while to ask to flip to the other side and do that for a little while.  So there’s lots of different provisions in there.  

And certainly please know that what we take most important a part here is making sure that we’re providing services in a meaningful, expeditious manner and making sure that no cases fall because of this.  If we find that it’s not working we’ll adjust it.  I mean again it’s a pilot project to try out.  

The reason we selected one year is you really do need that amount of time for cases to process through and get some meaningful data out of those numbers.  So again we may find that after six months it is working great or not working great.  There may be something that comes up, but as a pilot project there’s a lot of flexibility in it.  Your comments back about how it’s working are very important.  

MS. SAVAGE:  We had a comment from the web and I’m going to ask this person to clarify some questions for me:  

“I would like to ask -- “

So this is the comment from the web:  

“I would like to ask you if you can give information to the parent for Tigers.  We are a nonprofit organization that provides information to parents.  We are advocates and I would like if she could contact me please.  My information is up.  Can you please give this to her.”  

So if the person on the web could clarify who information needs to be transferred to we’ll make sure -- we’ll do our best to do it.

MS. BARDET:  It’s (inaudible).

MS. STEEL:  For Learning Rights, yeah, call Learning Rights.  They just need to call Learning Rights Law Center.

MS. SAVAGE:  Call Learning Rights Law Center.

MS. STEEL:  Learning Rights Law Center in Los Angeles.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  What’s that phone number?

MS. STEEL:  Phone number 213-489-4030.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  And while we’re at it you can also call Disability Rights California.  The Spanish speaker’s on the following 800-776-5746.  It’s 800-776-5746.

MS. SAVAGE:  And with that, I think we’re done with OAH’s response unless someone has a topic.  Steve?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Judge Laba on the pilot project, approximately how many pro tems are there now that are just mediators and are not ALJ’s?

JUDGE LABA:  Pro tems.  I think we have -- I’m going to guess -- fifteen-ish?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  How many?

JUDGE LABA:  Fifteen-ish, throughout the state.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Who are just mediators.

JUDGE LABA:  Who are just mediators.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  And they will -- they’ll be part of this sub-pilot sub-project?

JUDGE LABA:  Pro tems always get the overflow work so if we find out we have more mediation than our staff can handle, we turn to the pro tems for assistance.  Pro tems work is always based upon available work and on fiscal ability to pay.

MS. SAVAGE:  All right.   We’re on C.  We have 50 minutes left and we want to make sure we get to public comment.  I’m going to go to C and then we’re going to talk about the good cause if we had a chance to do it.  

So C is talking about the role of the Advisory Committee and the first question is structure changes to the Committee that should be considered.  So I guess the bigger question is simply webcasting, should the numbers reduce.

MS. VANAMAN:  It doesn’t say ‘should’ it says ‘will.’

MS. SAVAGE:  Will.  I’m sorry, you’re right.  

MS. VANAMAN:  So it looks like that decision has been made.  What number are they reducing it to?

MS. SAVAGE:  Do you know?

JUDGE LABA:  No.  OAH seeks -- it says OAH seeks a recommendation from the Committee as to a reasonable number of statewide committee members.  

MS. STEEL:  It should stay the same.  

MS. VANAMAN:  It says ‘OAH will reduce’ in the first sentence.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Move to strike?

JUDGE LABA:  What is your recommendation?

MS. SAVAGE:  I agree.  I think it should stay the same.  As nice as it is to talk I don’t find this a very -- it’s not very productive to have someone sitting on the screen I can’t see.  So I would encourage us to keep it the way we had it in October and if we need smaller meetings where the whole group meets but keep it the same size.  

MR. REZOWALLI:  I would absolutely wish to comment on that because I work -- does this work better for OAH?

JUDGE LABA:  OAH’s position is the webcast provides -- in the feedback we’ve gotten, provides much more opportunity for the public to be involved than any of our meetings we’ve ever held before.  It’s overwhelmingly commented that they loved the webcam and it provides an ability for people who normally couldn’t access the meeting to access the meeting.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. STEEL:  That’s the only concern.  I’m not convinced that the combined meeting’s really working because it’s hard to -- that’s my concern right now like I think that, you know, we can see by the end but I think, you know, that’s why -- one of the reasons why reducing you can’t -- I still think we may have to have two meetings.  So is there any -- I mean that’s --

MS. SAVAGE:  That’s my -- I agree with that.  I think that having it available by web is great so other people can --

MS. STEEL:  Yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  But I think it -- you know, I think there are different and distinct issues in Northern and Southern California and I think having this combined meeting is just a very difficult thing to run as well as to ensure participation from not just the Committee on each side but the public on each side.

MS. BARDET:  I think it’s really limiting the amount of discussion we can have with each other.  It’s kind of a disruptive flow of ideas.

MR. REZOWALLI:  And more difficult is spending three out of four hours going over what we did last time --

MS. BARDET:  I know.  I agree.

MR. REZOWALLI:  -- and reviewing it and having one hour to go over new items.

MS. SAVAGE:  I agree with that.

MR. REZOWALLI:  And if we -- because just really (inaudible) sometimes and also we’re committed to perhaps changing out a number of our members.  I can just see this discussion starting all over again with the new people that come in a few months.  

I’ve been in a number of Advisory Committee meetings.  I think we should have a good healthy discussion, come to some decision as to what we would advise and hope that it makes sense to OAH and they work with that.  We spend that -- we spend three hours working, doing this is just an excessive amount of time I believe.

MS. BARDET:  Well, I would like to respond to that. That was an agenda item is to have the respond to OAH responses so I think if it was a proper item --

MR. REZOWALLI:  Yeah.

MS. BARDET:  There was a lot of public comment.

MS. SAVAGE:  Kent and I spoke on the break and I think one of the questions that he and I both had is so what?  So we make the recommendations, so OAH responds, so we have a further discussion, so what?  What happens with our recommendations and the response and we’re very clearly told that we’re advisory and have very little power or, you know, persuasion, however you want to say it.  So why spend the time?  I don’t know.

MS. MCARTHUR:  I think we have the power of persuasion.  Hopefully this was all done in good faith and I don’t think there’s any reason to believe otherwise, that OAH is interested in hearing what we have to say or maybe I’m just very presumptuous because I think everybody is interested in hearing what I have to say.  But, you know, being an advisor as opposed to actually having some muscle, that’s a totally different issue.  I -- yeah, whatever.  Sorry.

MS. SAVAGE:  Southern California?  Janeen?

MR. WEINER:  I tend to agree that smaller meetings promote more discussion, although I think this has been fairly productive.  The last meeting we had in Southern California wasn’t quite as organized in terms of people making motions and actually making recommendations so I think this is good but these meetings may need to be -- I mean if you’re going to accomplish something they need to be more frequent than every 90 days.  

We’re here.  We’re making some recommendations and then it’s taken three months and now we’re reviewing those recommendations and making further comments on it.  So maybe it’s something that has to be done every other month and at some point, I mean I think we have to act as a total committee in making the recommendations --

MS. SAVAGE:  Paul.

MR. McIVER:  What Mr. Weiner is saying, only I’ll translate it into mental health language, is we’re not a group, we’re an aggregate.  And in order to become a cohesive group there has to be enough interaction among the members to develop that cohesion and for roles and responsibilities to be assigned and assumed and that cannot happen with the infrequent meetings.  

So I think the group should remain the same size or the advisory membership should remain the same size but more frequent meetings, southern and northern would be recommended.

MS. SAVAGE:  So can we have someone make a motion about the size of the committee?

MS. MCARTHUR:  We have a comment.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  This is a simple observation.  The last time we met the Advisory Committee was in a line and they were talking out at the audience.  This time they’re sitting at a table.  You’re sitting at a table.  There’s much more that goes on when you sit at a table than when someone is speaking out to an audience.  And this has been a much more fruitful conversation and experience than the previous one that I went down to at OAH in downtown.  So I think, as silly as that comment is, the table and sitting around it makes much more sense than a panel.

MS. SAVAGE:  Does that help -- the woman who just spoke -- does that help with the community because I feel -- I like the idea of sitting at a round table but I have all the public to my back and I have a hard time facilitating that so how’s the -- I mean if we’re supposed to be 

advising --

(Overlapping voices)

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  To me, I have eye contact with most people at the table in the room that I’m at.  And if I need to, you know, and also you’re responsive when the public needs to speak.  But the other -- the other setting was a waste of time.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So let’s hit the topic of the numbers.  Does anyone want to make a motion on the number of people in the Committee?

MR. WEINER:  We’re short one down here in Southern California.  You’re eleven?

(Overlapping voices)

MR. WEINER:  Strong resigned so we’re short one.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So I’ll make a motion to let the number stay the same and that we fill Gary’s spot down in Southern California.  

MR. WEINER:  Second.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All in favor raise your hand.  We’re unanimous up here.  Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Unanimous.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Do we want to make a recommendation based on the kind of the setup of the meeting?  Whether it’s more like a roundtable like we’re having today versus auditorium stage show, that’s a bad word but -- 

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Theatre in the round.

MS SILVERMAN:  I’m going to move that the setup that we have right now be continued and that’s around a table with enough space for the public to participate.

MR. WEINER:  Second.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  You don’t mean the table has to be round.

MS. SAVAGE:  No.  Okay, all in favor?  Okay.  We’re unanimous.

FEMALE:  We're unanimous over here.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay and the third issue, Paul, you brought up, do you want to make -- and I think Steve also brought it up, is the frequency of the meetings.  This is voluntary which makes it difficult to have it more frequent but do you want to make a recommendation about the frequency of the Advisory Committee meetings?

JUDGE LABA:  Right now they’re quarterly.

MS. SAVAGE:  Right now we’re quarterly.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes, every three months is quarterly isn’t it?

MR. McIVER:  I think we ought to double the number of meetings.

MS. SAVAGE:  Double?

MR. McIVER:  Yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  That would make eight meetings a year?

Man:  45 days?

WOMAN:  Oh, quarterly.  Three meetings.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Four.

MS. STEEL:  That’s where we’re at now.

MR. McIVER:  Four and a quarter.

MR. READ:  Are we making a motion or are we just discussing this?  

MR. REZOWALLI:  We’re discussing.

MR. READ:  I’m not in favor of making meetings more frequent just because the frequency that we’ve had so far allows people to plan and it gets more of an event where people have specific comments that they can bring into it.  

And also realistically I know it’s great while we’re all sitting here to say we should meet once a month but I also know what reality is like and I’m afraid we’re going to get more and more meetings where only half the Committee members are showing up.

MS. BROCK:  I agree with that.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And we have a comment from the public.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  I have a question about compilation of the group and the determination of the number.  There are nine people here.  I don’t know how many people are there --

JUDGE LABA:  Nine.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  -- I can’t see that.  

JUDGE LABA:  Well, there are eight now because Gary resigned.  The compilation right now is nine in North and nine in South.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  Okay.  And in terms of who those people are, how is that determined?

MS. SAVAGE:  That was by the interagency agreement between OAH and CDE I believe.

JUDGE LABA:  Right.  The interagency agreement says that we shall have a committee, it doesn’t tell us how many people, but the majority of whom should be parents or those who represent parents.  So we selected nine for Northern, nine for Southern and the majority of whom are either parents or those who represent parents on the balance.  

But we have a pride of other people represented (inaudible) the cell phone (inaudible) in Los Angeles but he resigned so currently it’s nine members (inaudible) one year your selection again and will begin again in May for the new Committee.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And we had a comment from the web and then I’ll come check you guys:

“Like the combined meetings and definitely the webcast.  Need to hear all sides of the issue at once.  It should be fluid.”

Was there someone down in Southern California that also had a comment?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MR. WEINER:  I’d like to -- can I make a motion? I move that we have six meetings a year.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Six meetings?

MR. WEINER:  Yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So.  We have a motion to have six meetings per year.  All in favor?  Or do we have a second to that motion?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Somebody did.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All in favor?  Six meetings per year?  How many do you have, Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Four support.

MS. SAVAGE:  We have five in support.  And then we’ll wait for Christine.  All those opposed?  To keep -- and that would mean you’re keeping it the same.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Four a year or three a year?

MS. SAVAGE:  Four a year.  That would be July, October, January and April.  We have three opposed.  Do you have two?  How many opposed?

MS. STEEL:  Two.

MS. SAVAGE:  Two?  We had three opposed.  Okay and then people who are abstaining?  We have one abstaining.  Do you have any?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:   Okay.  

MS. BARDET:  And how many down South (inaudible)?

MS. STEEL:  So we actually have five support.

MS. SAVAGE:  Five support.

MS. BARDET:  And how many no’s?

MS. STEEL:  Two.

MS. SAVAGE:  Two no’s?  Okay.  And no abstaining?  Okay.  

MS. BARDET:  Christine?

MS. SAVAGE:  We haven’t heard back from Christine.  Okay. The next topic on, in terms of the Committee itself is how to ensure --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Roberta --

MS. STEEL:  Can we ask one more question? Is it the size of the state combined or are we going to do some separate and some -- we’re going to go -- I mean we recommending six.  I would do some separate, some combined. I mean or are we just going to do them all combined?

MS. SAVAGE:  I don’t think we decided.  So that’s a -- maybe we should talk about that.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  This is Steve.  I would -- I would agree with that motion but I think there’s a usefulness and a certain efficiency in having some things combined, perhaps more roundtable than certain things that our decision level would be -- are we doing six?  Did it carry?

MS. BARDET:  It did with a total of ten yes.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Assuming --

(Overlapping voices)

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I think a few together but most of those no.

MS. STEEL:  We have a comment here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MR. READ:  I have a question for OAH whether it’s possible to expand the video conferencing aspect of it to include the other OAH offices.  I traveled up from San Diego today and I know there were a number of people from San Diego who wanted to participate but couldn’t when the location got switched to Van Nuys but if we had something like this available in the San Diego office I think we’d get a lot of participation.  And I might be in favor of more frequent meetings.

JUDGE LABA:  Let me ask our guru.  So can we only get two on the webcast or can we get more than one location on there.

(Overlapping voices)

JUDGE LABA:  Oh, okay.  So our webcast people are here.  Recently we had planned to have this meeting in Laguna Hills but their polycom equipment which is the equipment we’re using broke down so we had to switch it to Van Nuys at the last minute.  Liz will have to check to see whether we can walk in more than one location but you’ll -- if we had four you would have four little screens there right Liz?

Okay, we have to check on the limitations of the equipment but you all see how Christine is participating    by -- while on the webcast so that’s --

MS. SAVAGE:  Christine has a comment.

“Meetings every other month.  If one cannot attend, vote online or be a webcast, it can work.  Do the meetings joint.”

So Christine’s voting for joint so it’s fluid.

MS SILVERMAN:  I would say there’s seven of us here from the Bay area.

JUDGE LABA:  Well, as long as I have an OAH office, I have this polycom equipment and I can schedule -- Northern California is fairly simple.  Wait.  Don’t I have this main one, Liz?  Can I do it with Oakland and say Los Angeles?  Or is this -- because this is the mother ship I have to do this one?  Hold on, we’re checking.  

Man:  There’s more offices online.  You see it’s smaller.

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.  Because Sacramento is the mother ship for polycom problems we may be locked in here.  But we can -- as long as the office has a polycom we can polycom with that but I don’t know if we can get more than two locations so we need to do some work with our people hiding behind the screen over here, that’s the magic Wizard of Oz back there, to see what our limitations are.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So do we want to make a -- does anyone want to make a motion on whether they should be all joint or separate or do we want more information?  

MS. STEEL:  Move that it’s joint.  A joint webcast.

MR. WEINER:  Second.

MS. VANAMAN:  All of them?

MS. SAVAGE:  For all of them?

MS. SMITH:  I will say that --

MS. SAVAGE:  Well, wait.  Wait, wait, wait.  

MS. STEEL:  I withdraw my motion and ask for more discussion.  I thought I was hearing --

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Janeen -- okay.  So what are you guys talking about, Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  We’re not.  I guess my question is between -- can we just -- if we didn’t have six can we just maybe talk about the next three?  Maybe that is easier.  Right?  So that way that’s the --

MS. VANAMAN:  Under what God’s green acres do we think they’re going to agree to actually have six meetings a year?

MS SILVERMAN:  Yeah, I would say that let’s make a motion that every other meeting be a joint meeting and that way if it’s six it will be three.  If it’s four it will be two.

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  All right.  I’ll make the motion.  

MS. SAVAGE:  What.  She just did.

MS. STEEL:  Sorry.  Second.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay let’s vote.  All in favor of --

MR. REZOWALLI:  I think we’re supposed to have discussion between the motion and the vote.

MS. SAVAGE:  Do you want to have any discussion about having every other --

MR. REZOWALLI:  It’s just a process.  There’s always discussion between the motion and the vote.  It doesn’t matter if you had a discussion before you had the motion.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So we’re being told how the process should work so we make a motion, we get a second, we have a bit of discussion, we vote.  

MS. STEEL:  It needs to be following Robert’s rules.

MR. READ:  Roberta, could you re-state the motion so we all understand what it is?

MS. SAVAGE:  Lenore will.

MS SILVERMAN:  All right.  I move that we have group joint meetings of half -- for half of our meetings.  And that will be if there are six meetings, we’ll have three joint meetings.  If there’s meetings quarterly, then we’ll have two joint meetings.  

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  Every other meeting.

MR. REZOWALLI:  Every other.  And I just -- part of my discussion part of it was is the meetings where we’re not combined, is that where we’re discussing the possible topics for a combined meeting or are we going to make advisory decisions on the -- by ourselves without working together. 

MS SILVERMAN:  We make advisory decisions by ourselves and --

MS. SAVAGE:  I don’t know.  Did you guys hear that?

MR. WEINER:  Yes.

MS. STEEL:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. REZOWALLI:  So if it ties is one format say being together be one topic and one type of a format and when we’re by ourselves do we just do something different and come up with -- we’re north and you’re south and we do different things then come together and we have a discussion.  It takes a couple of hours just trying to figure out what we did when we’re separate.  

MS. VANAMAN:  Yeah, the reality is that there is a difference between the north part and the south part.  There are issues that are unique to the South where we might well have a different conclusion than you do and that’s always a struggle that anybody running this operation has had to deal with.  

There are peculiarities of geography and size here that are not encountered anywhere else in the State and it does lead to the need to have some flexibility and some difference in rules particularly with regard to our largest school district but certainly with some of the others that are outlying school districts that are really quite different than the things that you face north of the Tehachapi’s and it may well be that there are in fact times where there is a difference and in fact one of the requests from the South is don’t treat us the same as the North.  You know, we are a little different from time to time.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Christine’s input is:

“Meetings should be joint all the time for fluidity.”

And this is off topic but I want to make sure I get this.  There was a comment from the web:

“Please give --” 

And if someone could take notes down in Southern California on this -- 

“Please give Dahlia Lopez’s phone number to the lady who referenced the elephant.  The phone number is 

619 --“

MS. SMITH:  We’re on the webcast.  Why don’t we not give --

MS. STEEL:  In my opinion I sort of -- okay.

JUDGE LABA:  I can call down to Richard and give it to him and he can give it --

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  Yeah.

MS. SAVAGE:  Just trying to get it all in.  So in terms of Lenore’s motion what do we want to do?  Let’s vote on it or do we have more discussion?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  (Inaudible) but why don’t since there is a separate bullet here about how the process should be and I think it may just take a little bit of time to figure it out.  We now know the frequency and (inaudible) what Valerie said about the peculiarities of the South will rise again.  I just think right now we don’t need to necessarily decide that part of it.  

MS. SAVAGE:  How does that work?  We’re not going to decide.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  What about the Central Valley.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Can we move on to the next --

MS. STEEL:  We still have a vote pending.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So all those in favor of the motion to have every other meeting joint?  Janeen, what’s your vote?

MS. STEEL:  It’s unanimous.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We have all but one.  And are you voting no or abstaining?  

MS. STEEL:  And Christine I think was --

MS. SAVAGE:  And we’ll wait for Christine.

MS. MCARTHUR:  She wanted all of them joint.

MS. SAVAGE:  And we have a -- one opposition up here as well.  There’s a question from the web.

“Do any members of the Advisory Committee speak Spanish?  If so, how many?”

Steve Rosenbaum.  Southern California, do you have any?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Jonathan Read?

MS. STEEL:  Jonathan did.

MS. SAVAGE:  The next topic in this --

MS. STEEL:  We have a quick question.

MS. SAVAGE:  Oh.  Yes?

MR. READ:  Really quickly.  We were talking about consistency.  Right now I understand that when our term is up, OAH is going to replace the entire Committee and I would just suggest that maybe you consider staggering the terms.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  And that was the next topic.  Great transition.  Okay, so what -- like what type of staggering?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Just do that motion and I’ll second it.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So -- great but how -- what would it look like?  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Is that Jonathan that made it?

MR. READ:  Yeah.  I mean it’s just off the top of my head.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Well, let me speak for the idea that one third to one half turnover every year or -- yeah, one third, one half.  I’ll just put that out there for discussion.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. BROCK:  So possibly seven of the members right now go a year and a half to start fresh --

MS. VANAMAN:  Or two years.

MS SILVERMAN:  And afterwards you stagger and you have two year terms.  

MS. BROCK:  I also think that since this is a beginning committee and there are so many issues that need to be dealt with that you do keep quite a few people on for a bit next year.

MS. SAVAGE:  Southern California?

MS. SMITH:  You know, if you look at other statewide advisory committees -- for example, the (inaudible) Commission, staggers their membership.  It changes about 25 per cent a year but it’s two or four year terms.  I can’t remember which.  

I was on that Commission and it would have been really impossible to be a really, you know, well-informed member and be in and out in six meetings.  It’s silly.  You just begin to get the sense of your role and the thinking behind your decisions that have gone before you and you’d be out.  You wouldn’t find another statewide committee that turned over that fast.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. BROCK:  In this particular instance we are such a new committee and knowing it’s new I agree with that too that it should be at least two years.

MS. SAVAGE:  Did you guys hear that?

Multiple voices:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. WEINER:  Is that a motion?

MS. BROCK:  Is there -- I hear a motion there.

MS. SMITH:  Do you want me to make a motion?  I move that the term for the OAH Advisory Committee be two years and then we start at that point to stagger the terms after that.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Any second?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Second.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  All in favor?  All right, let’s have some discussion.  Any more discussion about having two year terms and then staggering it?

MR. REZOWALLI:  The staggering would be left up to OAH?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  We’ll decide that at the end, as you get towards the end of the term.

MS. SAVAGE:  So any feedback on how it gets staggered?

MR. WEINER:  I think we can put that off for a while so we can get to some more items here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So.  All in favor of two years and then stagger?

MS. STEEL:  Five support.

MS. SAVAGE:  Five support?  We’re unanimous up here.  All opposed to having a two year term and then having it staggered?

MS. STEEL:  No opposed.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Anyone abstaining?  

MS. STEEL:  One.

MS. SAVAGE:  One?  Okay.

MS. BARDET:  That’s only six plus Christine.  Down south.

MS. SAVAGE:  Did we miss him?  Did we only have six from you guys down there and then Christine on the web?  Is that the right number?

MS. STEEL:  It was five.  Yes.  One.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Another comment from the web.  

MS. BARDET:  Wait, something isn’t right.

MS. STEEL:  Seven plus one.

MS. BARDET:  Seven plus one.

MS. SAVAGE:  A video camera webcast comment:

“Get someone to move it around and go where the people are talking as you did in the other webcast.  It can be done in round tables too.”

Okay so our next is how should the Committee make recommendations?  What should the process be?  

MR. WEINER:  Advisory.

MS. SMITH:  Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Yes.

MS. SMITH:  Since this is an advisory committee and I presume that whether a majority says yes or not is, you know, taken into account but is somewhat irrelevant, when we’re not meeting together we can still vote internally to get a sense of where people are because we can keep track of that and I don’t think it matters frankly whether we are all voting in the same room at the same time.  

Woman:  I agree.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So do we want to define a process?  I mean I think that’s part of the long lane we all plow is how do we -- how do we operate this so that we -- if we are going to make recommendations we make them officially and we can move on.  

MS SILVERMAN:  If you follow Robert’s Rules of Order it works fast.  We haven’t done it.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Do we need to have any more discussion on this?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Just one thing.

MS. SAVAGE:  Steve?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  It seems to me last time didn’t -- North met after South, right?  

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  It seems to me there’s a certain benefit in the groups not meeting simultaneously, besides not meeting in the same room like this but one after the other, because we found one meeting tends to inform the other.  There’s already been initial discussion.  It helps to condense the time or define the thoughts.  I don’t know.  That may be too hard to do logistically but it seems to me there’s a little bit of value in one meeting building on another one is more to solve and --

MS. JOHNSON:  We all have the opportunity also to, you know, to archive now on the web so you can go and revisit it if you didn’t -- weren’t able go to when they have their meetings so --

MS. SAVAGE:  One other thing, we have about 20 minutes left.  I know we have public comments so how do we want to move from here to be -- and --

MS. VANAMAN:  I would really like to revisit this continuance procedure.  The thing that’s just been given to us --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. VANAMAN:  -- is no more helpful than anything we’ve had before in my opinion.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. VANAMAN:  It does not contain information specifically as to what is -- there is the example that we consider this to be good cause but not this but fundamental things such as a personal emergency, a long-term planned vacation paid for, things that you do find in the Court Rules which you attached to the handout are not included here.  

So I would ask again that we try and get further guidance with some -- some thought to actually trying to develop something that’s more specific.  I found this -- I still -- I’m still confused as to what the rule is.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Judge Laba --

JUDGE LABA:  What I ask is that you take some time to take this back with you.  Read it and maybe we can set a date like we did with the parent manuals by let’s say February 10th.  I don’t know what day of the week that is but you can provide your feedback to Richard Clark as to any additional discussion that you might have or clarification that you’re seeking on this and then give us a chance to review those.  And I think the most efficient use of your time.  It’s just a suggestion but if you want to discuss 

It, I know you haven’t had a lot of time --

MS. VANAMAN:  I think that would be a great idea.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Can we get -- take more than Feb -- can we just do this the same date that we need to give feedback on the parent manual?

JUDGE LABA:  I don’t know if that -- I had a comment to myself.  Richard, did we establish a date for --

MS. SAVAGE:  February 29th.

JUDGE CLARK:  Yeah. On the website we said February 29th.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Do we want to shorten it?  I had someone point out we might want to get these --

JUDGE CLARK:  There’s not.  It’s February 27th is the last day of the month so -- is the last Friday of the month.  So February 27th, we’ll have to change that on the website.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Do we want to shorten up on the comments on the good cause maybe to February 10th or around that time frame?

MS. VANAMAN:  No.  We had the same amount of 

time --

MS. SAVAGE:  So the same amount so February 27th?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Do we have anything else to talk about on the continuance if we’re going to give her feedback?  Janeen, anything down there?

MS. STEEL:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS. BARDET:  Could we just give a list of scenarios and people can submit a list of scenarios that then OAH can then respond to because I think it’s hard to just say give us all the parameters when it’s in a vacuum.  If we gave a whole list to and contributed the scenarios that might be a platform for them to then discuss which ones would be good cause and which ones wouldn’t.

MS. SAVAGE:  Valerie?

MS. VANAMAN:  I respectfully disagree with that.  They have attached -- in the handouts that we got in this package they do address the Court Rule, the 3.1332, which is in fact in my view a well thought through, well designed list of the kinds of things that do constitute good cause and I think that having at least a fundamental list with the understanding there are always exceptional circumstances.  Life is always giving us those, but those do contain a set of rules that seem to be fairly well thought out.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Where are you reading from, Valerie?

(Overlapping voices)

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Okay.

MS. SAVAGE:  I think the problem -- and Valerie, tell me if I’m not understanding -- this is a thing that’s just attached but this isn’t saying this is what OAH is following.

MS. VANAMAN:  That’s correct.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Well, they refer to it.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Janeen and Valerie?

MS. STEEL:  Is there something that Valerie --

MS. VANAMAN:  Yes.  I’m sorry.  I really am having a very difficult time finding this.  I can’t actually see the screen.  I can’t see you.  So I never know who’s talking because it’s just -- it’s not a good setup so -- and I’m having a hard time therefore following it because of my own challenges.  But the -- my point was the following, that I was responding to what I heard someone say was well, we should give them a list of all these things.  

I don’t think you can give a list of specific factual issues.  My only point was that in the handout and the thing they posted on it they do make reference to this Court Rule.  The Court Rule is an example of how an agency could have generalized statements of things that generally constitute good cause.  That’s all I was going to say.

MS SILVERMAN:  I just think it needs to be parent-friendly.

MS. SAVAGE:  Thanks, Valerie.  Okay.  So do we -- do we want to have more discussion on this, Southern California, or do we want to reserve our comments for written?  Janeen? 

MS. STEEL:  Steven has one.

MR. WEINER:  I have a question.  Valerie, are you taking issue with the fact that they’re saying they’re going to be guided by this Court Rule as opposed to they’re going to follow the Court Rule?

MS. VANAMAN:  I don’t know what the impact of this is.  And I would just like clarity on what the impact of this is and what I’m concerned about is then when they get down to examples for good cause their examples do not include things that are in Rule 3.1332.

MR. WEINER:  Right.

MS. VANAMAN:  That’s my only concern.

MR. WEINER:  So it might be better to restate the rule.

MS. VANAMAN:  It might be.

MR. WEINER:  Okay.  So we can have until the 27th to comment.

MS. STEEL:  We said the tenth.

MR. WEINER:  27th.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  We have -- I’m going to move on unless there’s someone else, something else people want to talk about on the continuance.  We have 15 minutes.  We talked a little bit about the parent handbook.  There’s still the topic of the intersection between CDE and OAH.  We talked about the website and we have public comment.  What do we want to go to next?  

MS. VANAMAN:  Can I ask --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. VANAMAN:  CDE is on this?

MS. SAVAGE:  CDE is --

MS. STEEL:  CDE in on the website -- on the call, right?

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes.  Shane Burley was present, or is present I should say.

MS. STEEL:  So can they make a comment about the intersection?

JUDGE LABA:  I believe that they might come on but their response I think to the Committee that Mr. Bellotti gave was that they would ask for you to ask specific questions --

MS. SAVAGE:  Their response to me was that if we had any questions about their intersection with OAH that we should put it in writing to them which I think I made concerns in writing.  I think Jonathan had put concerns in writing.  Carl agreed with those concerns.  Right.  Not mine.  So I’m not sure exactly what else we’re supposed to put in writing to CDE.  But they are supposed to be online still?

JUDGE LABA:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  And I don’t -- you know, I have no idea how the committee wants to handle it.  I was frustrated that CDE was not here but again we’re not really getting to this topic unless we want to table this for our next meeting and have it the first topic on everyone’s agenda.  So we asked that CDE be present and OAH so that when issues come up we can head it -- do it the first thing.

MR. WEINER:  Roberta --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MR. WEINER:  We -- you know, some of us on the Committee have had a chance to read, you know, the emails that have gone back and forth but I don’t think the public has any idea of what we’re talking about so it might be helpful if you explain.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So at the last meeting it was on the agenda, I think you guys in Southern California did it a little bit, the issue is the intersection between the Department of Education and OAH.  

The issues that I was raising and my issues are the ones I was on, I’m not speaking for the rest of the Committee but if there is something that intersects between OAH and the Department of Ed, how do those two agencies handle it so that students get their, you know, get to exercise their rights.  

We talked a little today about records.  There are issues about not holding resolution sessions that OAH says ‘not our jurisdiction’ but CDE might issue a non-compliance and there’s no time to -- outside the timeline of the hearing so we -- it’s useless.  

The other could be responding to the complaint so when the student files complaint the District does not answer and a family files for a parent or a student or their attorney files a compliance complaint but we get that resolution 60 days and the hearing has already occurred and so we were trying -- I was trying to find out how does the Department of Education and OAH work together when they intersect, not on every compliance issue, not on every due process issue.  

And CDE had been present at the last meetings and are present via webcast today which personally frustrated me.  And I hope -- and I know that the Districts had a different issue raised by Jonathan that was raised in email and I don’t know if it was raised in Southern California and I think -- Jonathan, if I get it correct -- there were District concerns about CDE’s oversight on compliance with a decision so looking at a decision and making sure that it was in compliance.

MR. READ:  Well, if I can go ahead and clarify that.  Mr. Bellotti stated at the last meeting that, and I may be wrong in my recollection of it but that part of the focused monitoring of compliance in California would be independently looking at due process decisions to look for procedural compliance issues and I think I’ve spoken to a number of school districts who quite frankly have a lot of questions about it.  So this is absent any specific compliance complaint.  They’re just looking at the decisions.  And I believe Mr. Bellotti said that they’re looking at the four corners of the decision.  

The clarification that a lot of the school districts wanted was what kind of procedural issues are they looking at any that might come up or are they looking at the specific issues or are they looking at simply the ability or whether or not school districts actually implement an order by OAH, and there were a lot of follow up questions to that, too, meaning how do -- how do the parties’ appeal rights fit into those compliance issues.  

Are we going to be responding to compliance, you know, corrective actions even before a school district had a right, you know, to appeal a decision.  And so there were just a lot of follow up issues that I think they wanted some discussion on.

MS. STEEL:  Steven.

MR. WEINER:  The issues that, Roberta, you 

mentioned -- I see where there could be an intersection.  The issue that you’re raising now, Jonathan, I don’t see where there is an intersection.  

MR. READ:  Correct.

MR. WEINER:  OAH has apparently issued a final decision.  Parties have 90 days to implement it and the law requires the CDE to enforce the decision.  So I don’t see how there’s an intersection.  I mean I’d like to have that dialogue --

MR. READ:  Right.

MR. WEINER:  -- as well as you would but that’s -- I don’t know that we have a forum for dialoguing with the CDE.

MR. READ:  Right.  And I appreciate that comment.  And I also appreciate one of Mr. Bellotti’s responses to the email was identifying that particular issue that maybe this was not an OAH issue, maybe this is a CDE compliance unit issue.

MR. WEINER:  Right.

MR. READ:  But I think, you know, depending on how that’s answered there might be issues with how decisions are rendered, how the findings are drafted, how the issues are identified.  Maybe it’s not an issue but it may have OAH implications.

MS. SAVAGE:  And just -- I’m going to interject.  We have a comment from Jim Bellotti:

“In response to your comments, I provided a response to Roberta and Jonathan.  However, in my response some of the concerns were not clear, therefore it would be helpful to have the Advisory Committee ask any questions that remain unanswered.”

MR. WEINER:  Roberta, could --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MR. WEINER:  I’m sorry.  Steve, did you have --

MS. SAVAGE:  Are you -- okay.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Yeah.  No, I think this is -- we don’t have the time.  We need -- we need probably Jim Bellotti here and in the room or by speaker phone because this, by email or by webcast, it just doesn’t -- there’s not enough time.  It’s not really conducive.  

I think it’s a lot of overlap, some governed by, you know, the Federal regs, Title 34, some practical situations, some misunderstanding on the public about compliance process versus due process but I just think we need to devote a large portion of a meeting to that kind of face to face voice to voice conversation.  It’s not to cast aspersions on anyone but I think that’s the most productive way to have this.  

MS. STEEL:  We need a dynamic exchange --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Yeah.

MS. STEEL:  -- and not just a static.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  -- a roundtable discussion.

MS. SAVAGE:  I will make a motion.  Okay.  Dana, go ahead.

MS. JOHNSON:  And, you know, to say to request his presence and I’ll just say the elephant in the room.  At the last meeting I was sitting at the panel table facing the audience and Jim Bellotti was dozing in and out from 1:30 to 3:30 so I need to know that we’re going to have his full attention.  I’m here on my own time and at my own expense and he’s being paid by State --

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I don’t think we should have personal attacks on anybody.

MS. JOHNSON:  It’s not a personal attack.  I just want to know he’ll dedicate the time to what we need to discuss.

MS. SMITH:  I do need to say that as a District Special Ed Director one of the big reasons I am here today is because of this agenda item.  So I fully expected a CDE representative to be here.  

MS. SAVAGE:  So I will make a motion that our next scheduled meeting, whenever that is, the first agenda item for both Southern and Northern California be the intersection between CDE and OAH and that OAH ensure that a representative from CDE be present at each location to discuss the issues, that way we can figure out what is something that we can talk about and something we can’t.

JUDGE LABA:  Let me just say we cannot ensure --

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.

JUDGE LABA:  I can’t force CDE to do anything.  We can invite them and you can invite them as well.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Right.  So second the motion.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Could we have a subpoena duces tecum?

MS. SAVAGE:  So Eliza seconds the motion.  All in favor?  

MS. MCARTHUR:  When will we have the discussion?

MS. SAVAGE:  Oh, I’m sorry.  

MS. MCARTHUR:  It’s okay.  Just let me understand this.  Just read the public comments.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So Jim has some feedback:

“The CDE would be pleased to respond to the questions raised by Jonathan Read.  I would suggest that the Advisory Committee put these questions in writing.”

MS. BROCK:  You know, can I make a recommendation that by February 29th when we’re going to be submitting our other questions that we developed that if questions remain for CDE and then present those to CDE and maybe we can then encourage them once again to be present to answer the questions.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. BROCK:  You’re absolutely right.  Thank you.  February 27.

MS. VANAMAN:  What about --

MS. BROCK:  If they’re not going to attend, if they absolutely refuse not to attend, have them by speaker phone so that we can at least --

(Overlapping voices)

MS. STEEL:  Can we just ask Jim Bellotti if he can come?  Can he send us an email right now?  Can he come? 

MS. BROCK:  I also waited for him to get here so --

MS. SAVAGE:  So if we can get a response to Janeen’s question if Jim can come.  

MS. VANAMAN:  What the rationale is for not attending is for -- since time immemorial they have been attending.  There was always somebody there.  So this is a change.  This is a change in their prior practice not to come to an Advisory Committee meeting.  I’d be curious as to what the rationale is as to why they changed their prior practice and policy.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Is there --

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so now let’s vote on my motion which was to put on our next -- if I can remember it -- at our next meeting the first agenda item, intersection between CDE and OAH, so we can figure out what we can and cannot talk about and everyone will do what they can to get CDE present.  

MS. MCARTHUR:  Offering a date that might be available.  We can maybe talk about dates together.  

MS. BROCK:  We can talk about dates and we can also submit our questions.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes.  

MS. BROCK:  By February 27.

(Overlapping conversations)

MS. STEEL:  Okay.  Where are we now?

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so we have -- we have a motion to put this as the number one agenda item at our next meeting and that we’re hogtieing CDE or something to get them present or figuring out how to get them there so we can discuss it and figure out what we can and can’t discuss and then we’ve had the public ask if we will post, publish whether CDE will be present or not.  All right.  So, all in favor of the motion?  

MS. STEEL:  Seven.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Is that unanimous?  Okay, we have eight.

MS. STEEL:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So we have --

MS. STEEL:  We’re waiting for Christine now.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So it goes to the Committee.  Do we want to give -- open it up to the public since we do have time to talk about or give written feedback on the parent pamphlets?  Do we want to open up now to public comment?

JUDGE LABA:  It just needs to be read because it’s too much to write out on a card.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

JUDGE LABA:  So Debra can read it for you.

MS. SAVAGE:  Well, I was -- that’s my question.  I don’t know.  So that’s my question.  Do we want to -- since everyone’s going to get time to submit written feedback on the parent handbook, do we want to move it just to public comment since we’ve also already discussed the website?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I just want to make sure we comment about the handbook.

MS. SAVAGE:  Janeen, how do you guys feel about that?

MS. STEEL:  Public comment.  Do you want to say anything else?

MR. READ:  I’d like to just request that whatever is mentioned in writing pertaining to the last agenda item is provided to CDE that that also is made available to the public before the meeting please.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  

MS SILVERMAN:  So do we agree that we’re going to do that by February 27th?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Yes.  Yes, that was part of the motion.

MS. BROCK:  We should pick another date so that we can get CDE to respond before we do public comments.

MS. SAVAGE:  Are you guys comfortable picking a date now for our next meeting and then we’ll open it up to public comment?  Janeen?

JUDGE LABA:  Well, OAH can take your recommendation under consideration as to whether it be joint.  I would suggest you do -- you give certain suggestions such as a date that will work for a joint meeting and then the -- and then a couple of other dates for possible individual meetings because space is an issue as well.  We have to check availability of space et cetera so give OAH as many options as possible.

(Overlapping voices)

MR. READ:  Roberta, we did have some more public comment down in Southern California when you’re ready.

MS. SAVAGE:  We do too but we were -- are you 

guys -- how did you guys want to do it?  Pull your calendars out while people are commenting or get it set and then comment?

MS. BARDET:  Can we look at April 13th, which is a Monday?

MS. STEEL:  So we’re doing the three months so --

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah, right.  Right.  

(Overlapping voices)

MS. MCARTHUR:  Oh, that’s okay.  We’re working on April date.  April 13th is on the table.  What’s the answer from the south?

MS. STEEL:  April 13th is what you said?  It’s fine for me.  Everybody?

MR. McIVER:  The question is what day is Easter as well.

MS SILVERMAN:  I don’t know.  And the first night of Passover.  

MS. VANAMAN:  What is the first night of Passover?

MR. WEINER:  April 9th.

MS. MCARTHUR:  I wonder whether some districts may be on break during that week.  Is that -- I’m seeing some nods from the audience so that might be bad in terms of the public being available on the district’s end.

MS SILVERMAN:  What about the 6th?

MS. MCARTHUR:  All right, how about the 20th?

MS. STEEL:  Any of those work for me.  Anybody?  Those are okay.

MS. MCARTHUR:  The 20th?

MS. BROCK:  The 20th is fine.

MS. STEEL:  The 20th.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  The 27th.

MS. MCARTHUR:  And the backup proposal from Steve Rosenbaum is 27th?

MS. STEEL:  The 27th is probably not going to work for a lot of people.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  The 20th?

MS. STEEL:  So can we do 6, 13 or 20, right?

MS. SAVAGE:  Wait a minute, what did we just say?  The 20th was the first choice, is that correct?  So it’s April 6th, April 13th --

MS. MCARTHUR:  I thought we were looking at April 20th.

MR. READ:  April 20th is the date the in Southern California they agreed to.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Excellent.  Excellent.  Good job.  Now can we all agree to April 20th?

JUDGE LABA:  I need at least two options.

MS. MCARTHUR:  All right.  That’s the first option.  

(Overlapping voices)

MR. READ:  April 20th is the first option.  What’s your second option?

MS. MCARTHUR:  How about 24th?  Does it have to be a Monday?  How about the 24th?

MR. READ:  23rd?

MS. STEEL:  22nd?

MR. READ:  22nd?  Okay.

MS. SAVAGE:  Susan isn’t here.  Susan’s in hearings.

MS. STEEL:  The week of the 27th is probably not going to work for people because there’s conference.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Tenth?  Tenth?  

MS SILVERMAN:  Eighth?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Eighth is Passover.  That’s no good.

MS. SAVAGE:  How about the 7th?

MS. MCARTHUR:  What was wrong with the 6th?  

JUDGE LABA:  Let me just make a suggestion.  April is a really tough month because of Passover, Easter breaks and the LLT Conference so you might have ask for a date in May.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Good idea.

JUDGE LABA:  Or the last week in March.

MS. MCARTHUR:  May 4th.

JUDGE CLARK:  The last week of March doesn’t work for OAH though, we’re dark that week.

JUDGE LABA:  Oh, that’s right.  Conference.  Thank you.  First week in May?

MS. SAVAGE:  May 4th Lenore can’t do it.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Okay how about May 8th?  Cannot do it.  Okay.  All right how about the middle?

(Overlapping voices)

MR. READ:  April 7.  I thought that was on the table.

MS. MCARTHUR:  Which one?  April 7th?

(Overlapping voices)

MR. READ:  Roberta, we need to either figure out a date or let the public make some comment because we’re sort of getting off track here.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yeah, let’s -- let’s do public comment while we deal with the date and get it posted.  Okay so I just have a couple of things to read and then I’m going to open it up to -- okay, so Jim -- Jim came up with:

“By putting the questions in writing, the CDE can ensure that personnel with the knowledge to respond to the inquiries is present at the next meeting.”

I had a couple other comments from the public earlier on the parent of a Special Education child:

“Retaliation is a huge problem in the West End SELPA.  Who do we turn to when that occurs?”

I think that’s a good question.  I don’t know.  

FEMALE:  Office of Civil Rights.

MS. SAVAGE:  Office of Civil Rights.  And there was a question:

“Require attendance to meetings unless important.  Should be dismissed from the Committee if not regularly attending.”

JUDGE LABA:  Here’s a public comment:

“If ALJ judges are in fact trained, then why do parents who represent their kids not get a full legal opinion.  Rather the opinion for parents who represent their kids are very short and ambiguous, not logically or legally sound.  I have to say that CDE has a system of double standards.  People who can afford high power attorneys and the others who cannot.  

If you cannot then you really have no rights.  The system and double standard violates equality.  The Congress be informed about the serious systematic civil rights violations that are the result of the double standard rule.”

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So Janeen, you guys know you have public comment.  Let’s start and then I’ll check here to see if we have any.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  This is for the person who had the information where to go.  It is an issue for the discrimination but what I found out is that (inaudible) so they can contact the person who is in charge.  There is a (inaudible) student (inaudible) that you get information and it is the district level, a person can go over there and talk about that.  

I want to talk about the recommendation (inaudible) put it in writing (inaudible) they have it here.  It is the signature of 60 Tiger parents that we’re going to just -- we’re going to add the statement of the resignation and this recommendation and I’m a parent that was in the last information departmental hearing.  If to the Los Angeles district and they mentioned about the (inaudible) working and I’m not sure if it was a CD or a DVD.  I would like information to the status of the project.

JUDGE LABA:  Yeah.  I’ll take that one.  At the last parent outreach meeting that we did at LAUSD I think we mentioned that we’re working on a -- like a DVD for parents how to.  That’s our goal.  It’s not required by our contract with the Department of Ed but we’re working -- we think it would be very helpful for the public.  So Richard, if you do have a meeting about that and they’re working on contracts, right?

JUDGE CLARK:  We’re working on the pamphlet contracts.  The DVD and such, it’s all in the works but because of our potential fiscal problems we’re not sure where we’re going to do that at this point.

JUDGE LABA:  Okay.  So we can maybe provide an update at the next -- at the next Advisory meeting.  But we thought it would be beneficial to have a DVD that parents can view rather than having to just read the parent manual so --

MS. SAVAGE:  Will you make sure that those of us up in Northern California get the handout that I think you guys just got.  And I just want to remind the Committee members, I know we’ve gone past the time but the public comment is important so if we can stay attending while it goes through.  Do you have more public comment, Janeen?

MS. STEEL:  Yes.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  I know it’s important that the logistics work for the Advisory Committee but it also should work for the public and it’s very hard to tell who’s speaking from Northern California so maybe just some refining and identifying yourself as you talk because unless you’re good at voice identification you can’t see everybody and can’t see from everyplace in this room so maybe we can work on that a little.  It’s not a very comfortable situation.

MS. STEEL:  Anybody else?

JUDGE CLARK:  I think that’s it down here.

MS. SAVAGE:  We do have comment up here.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  (Inaudible) comment with regard to each agenda item as you go through the agenda and general -- and it would also be helpful to have a strong estimate as to the adequate number of handouts for every one in the public.

MS. SAVAGE:  Did you guys get that?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  No.

MS. SAVAGE:  So we have public comment that there should be public comment on each agenda item and there needs to be a better estimate -- estimation of the number of handouts so that everyone can make sure, whether you’re a Committee member or not, you get the handouts.  Okay.  Is there any member who has a general comment?  We have two up here.  Okay, Dana?

MS. JOHNSON:  Just to somewhat address that I’m thinking it’s possible too that there are in the Advisory Members listed on the website and if you ever have anything you want to possibly get on the agenda I think that’s a purpose that it’s there that you could contact, you know, somebody via that website to help get something possibly put into an agenda as well because I know I’ve gone and done some public speaking and addressed some organizations for parents and that’s how a lot of things that I’ve brought to the forefront to get on the agenda, where they came from.  They’re not all just sort of from --

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  This wasn’t with regard to placing item on the agenda.  It was (inaudible) OAH on the agenda.

MS. SAVAGE:  Great.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  Thank you.

MS. STEEL:  And the public should know, too, that if they have an issue for the agenda they can contact any of us at those numbers any time if there’s an issue that they want addressed.

MS. SAVAGE:  We just -- before we go any further Susan keeps reminding me that on the issue of CDE, part of the motion did not include that we as a Committee provide feedback to CDE about our questions in writing by February 27th and do we want to amend that motion --

MS. MCARTHUR:  And also Kate there needs to know.

MS. BARDET:  Okay.  Kate, the second item that wasn’t included in the motion that passed was that CDE recommends that in discussions CDE be dynamic and not limited to the questions that are submitted in advance for convenience to CDE.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay so do you want to make a motion?  Do you want to make a motion to amend the original --

MS. MCARTHUR:  No.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  That should be discussed with the motion that there be that discussion whether it’s passed. 

MS. SAVAGE:  Right.  But we’re trying to -- Lenore had suggested -- Lenore’s suggestions didn’t make it into the prior motion and we passed it already -- let’s get something going and make a motion.

MS SILVERMAN:  Okay, so I’ll move that we will submit some written questions to CDE so that they feel more comfortable but that the Committee strongly recommends that CDE be prepared to answer questions in a dynamic fashion.

MS. SAVAGE:  And the date being February 27?

MS SILVERMAN:  Yes.

MS. SAVAGE:  Second it?

MS. MCARTHUR:  Second.

MS. SAVAGE:  All in favor?  All opposed?  I think it was unanimous.  

MR. WEINER:  Valerie’s not here.

MS. STEEL:  Valerie’s not here so it’s six.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Is there anything -- Steve?

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Just a question and comment about the pamphlet.  Do we have a tentative date for it because I know there’ve been some changes that were discussed?

JUDGE LABA:  The 27th is the response period.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Okay.  

JUDGE CLARK:  We don’t have a specific due date.  We’ll have it done within the contract guidelines.  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  I just noticed that a lot of what we’re discussing may change, of course that’s inevitable but some of these things may factor in.  Two, on the translation issue do I understand that even that you’re not going to hire, that all the translation will be done by Google?

JUDGE LABA:  No.  For the draft.  Just for the draft.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  Oh, okay.

JUDGE LABA:  The final will be professionally translated.

MR. ROSENBAUM:  All right.  And I would urge that even a really, really good translator can benefit from a focus group.  I’m sure we can get volunteers north and south to just look at what the translator produces before the final is done because there is just a lot of nuances and a lot of colloquialisms that it would be really useful to have.

JUDGE LABA:  And I have --

MS. STEEL:  The agendas should be translated, not by Google too.  I mean those are not very long.  They’ve done this for the Advisory Meeting, to be translated too as well.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

JUDGE LABA:  And one question about your scheduling.  We adjusted the schedules from 10:00 to 2:00 this time to accommodate people who had to travel.  Do you want to keep it 10:00 to 2:00?  Do you want to go back to 9:00 to noon?  

MR. ROSENBAUM:  10:00 to 3:00?

MS. SAVAGE:  I think having it in the middle of lunch makes it difficult for all of us so I don’t know how we adjust it one way or the other.  

MS. SMITH:  It depends on the location.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay.

(Overlapping voices)

MS. SMITH:  -- the other side of the hill.  If it’s in down LA you could do it by 9:00.

MR. READ:  There’s a train that goes to LA.  

MS. SMITH:  Yeah, there’s a train to LA so it’s -- if you have it out here in Van Nuys it can’t start earlier than 10:00.

JUDGE LABA:  Do you want four hours or do you want three hours?

Multiple voices:  Four hours.

JUDGE LABA:  Four.

MS. SAVAGE:  I think we need four but I think we also need to be realistic about our agenda and what we think we can get through and what we can’t.  Clearly we all have a lot to talk about and making an agenda we can’t get through is a nightmare, but we need to have discussions about topics.  

MS. STEEL:  We have one more public.

MS. SAVAGE:  Yes.

WOMAN FROM PUBLIC:  I’m sorry for interrupting but we come in together and some mothers we need to get 

another -- the child outside to the school and too they have some therapies and I say thank you.  Thank you for listen to us and I’m so happy you open to us and I hope we make a good chance -- a good chance for our child.

MS. SAVAGE:  Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK:  And Sherri, there is an email that someone was going to send me so I can give a phone number to somebody.  If somebody can just forward that email to my email and my blackberry I can check it.  

MS. SAVAGE:  Debra, did you get that?

Debra:  I gave it to Sherri.

MS. SAVAGE:  Okay are we -- do we have -- okay are we all done?

JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you everybody.

JUDGE LABA:  So check your emails for the dates.

 (Thereupon, the meeting was adjourned.)
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